Brookfield

Properties
February 11, 2022

BSE Ltd. National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
Corporate Relationship Department, Exchange Plaza, 5" Floor,
1t Floor, New Trading Ring, Plot no. C/1, G Block
Rotunda Building, P J Towers, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra(E),
Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai — 400 001 Mumbai-400051
corp.relations@bseindia.com cmlist@nse.co.in
SCRIP CODE: 543261 SYMBOL: BIRET
SCRIP ID: BIRET
Subject: Outcome of meeting of board of directors held on Friday, February 11,

2022

Dear Sir/Ma’am,

We wish to inform you that Board of Directors of Brookprop Management Services Private
Limited, the manager of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust (“Brookfield India REIT”) at its
meeting held on Friday, February 11, 2022, through Audio-Visual Electronic Communication
has, inter-alia:

(@) Approved the Unaudited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements and
Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Brookfield India REIT
for the quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2021.

(b) Declared distribution of ¥ 1,514.01 million / ¥ 5 per unit for the quarter ended
December 31, 2021. The distribution comprises of ¥ 993.19 million/ % 3.28 per unit in
the form of interest payment on shareholder loan, ¥ 30.28 million / ¥ 0.10 per unit in
the form of dividend; ¥ 481.46 million / ¥ 1.59 per unit in the form of repayment of
SPV debt and the balance % 9.08 million / ¥ 0.03 per unit in the form of interest on
fixed deposit.

Further, please find enclosed:

1. Copy of the press release to be issued in connection with the Unaudited Condensed
Standalone Financial Statements and Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements of Brookfield India REIT for the quarter and nine months ended December
31, 2021, as Appendix I.

2. Copy of the investor presentation for the quarterly update as Appendix Il.

3. Copy of Unaudited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements and Unaudited
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Brookfield India REIT for the quarter
and nine months ended December 31, 2021, and the reports of the Statutory Auditors
thereon as Appendix lIl.

The related party transactions during the quarter ended December 31, 2021, are set out in
the Unaudited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements (refer note no. 25) and
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Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Brookfield India REIT (refer
note no. 40).

The documents referred above are also uploaded on our website at:
https.//www.brookfieldindiareit.in/financial-updates/#results

We also wish to inform you that the record date for the proposed distribution to unitholders
for the quarter ended December 31, 2021, will be Monday, February 21, 2022, and the
payment of distribution is proposed to be made on or before Saturday, February 26, 2022.

You are requested to take the above information on record.

Thanking You.
Yours Faithfully,

For Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as a manager of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust)

Kol Gorsons

Ruhi Goswami

Compliance Officer

CC:

Axis Trustee Services Limited

Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound
Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli

Mumbai 400 025, Maharashtra, India

BROOKPROP MANAGEMENT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED (Formerly known as BPG India Private Limited)
Registered Office and Correspondence Address: Unit 1, 4th Floor, Godrej BKC, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai 400 051
T: +91 22 66000700 CIN: U74999MH2018FTC306865 E-mail: bpindia.legal @brookfield.com; reit.manager@brookfield.com
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Appendix I
Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Press Release

BROOKFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST REPORTS Q3 FINANCIAL YEAR 2022 RESULTS

All figure references are in Indian Rupees, unless noted otherwise

Brookfield India Real Estate Trust (Tickers: BSE: 543261, NSE: BIRET) (“BIRET”), India's only institutionally
managed REIT, today announced financial results for the quarter and nine months ended December 31, 2021.

“We continue to witness strong leasing momentum with 536,000 sf of gross leasing across assets with
additional expansion options of 291,000 sf in the quarter totalling 825,000 sf of gross leasable area. We also
increased our total leasable area by 32% with the acquisition of Candor Techspace N2 in Noida. The country’s
high growth IT sector is driving a strong demand for safe, high-quality workplaces. Occupiers are looking to
accommodate an even larger workforce today and a stronger core business as they draw their back to office
plans. Our global expertise, commitment to sustainable practices and placemaking capabilities ensure that we
continue to remain their long-term partner in this journey.” said Alok Aggarwal, Chief Executive Officer,
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited.

The key highlights of the business from Q3 FY2022 were as follows:

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

= Collected 99% of contracted rentals, while achieving an average 7% escalation on 0.5 M sf of leased
area

»= Quarter-end Committed Occupancy at 83%

= Achieved a gross leasing of 536,000 sf across assets during the quarter with additional expansion
options of 291,000 sf totalling 825,000 sf

* Successfully completed the acquisition of Candor Techspace N2 on 24" January 2022 for Rs. 40
billion

» The acquisition was partially financed through India’s first preferential issue to institutional investors
by a listed REIT of Rs 9.5 billion. Commitment by Brookfield Group alongside reputed long-term
institutional investors is a testament of our high-quality portfolio and positive business outlook.

ESG HIGHLIGHTS

¢ In line with our commitment to sustainable practices, we continue to adopt strategies to mitigate the
impact of our operations on the environment. Achieved a 6% reduction in energy consumption and
27% reduction in water intensity across assets.

o Received the Sword of Honour for Safety by British Safety Council for N1 and K1

e Secured IGBC Platinum certification for G2 and N1, and IGBC Gold rating for K1

e Achieved 58 Gold Rating from ClI

CANDOR TECHSPACE G1 (IDENTIFIED ASSET) HIGHLIGHTS

» Candor Techspace G1 achieved 274,000 sf of new leasing during the quarter, taking its Committed
Occupancy to 76%
» Rental collections continue to be robust at 99%



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

= Planned distribution of Rs 1.5 billion (Rs 5.00 per unit) this quarter, with 34% of distributions tax free
for unit holders. Total cumulative distribution of Rs 17.00 per unit since listing

= Generated NDCF of Rs 1.4 billion (Rs 4.74 per unit) for the quarter, totalling Rs. 5.3 billion (Rs 17.59
per unit) since listing

= Achieved a ~40 bps reduction in borrowing costs and continue to maintain a strong balance sheet
with 33% loan-to-value ratio post N2 Acquisition

= Income from Operating Lease Rentals at Rs 1.4 billion (4.3% decrease over Q3 FY2021) and Net
Operating Income at Rs 1.5 billion (7.7% decrease over Q3 FY2021) with an expected pick up in
subsequent quarters driven by the new leases contracted in Q3 FY2022

ABOUT BROOKFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST

Brookfield India Real Estate Trust is India's only institutionally managed REIT, comprising of five large campus
format office parks located in key gateway markets of India — Mumbai, Gurgaon, Noida, and Kolkata. The
BIRET portfolio consists of 18.6 M sf comprising 13.9 M sf of completed area, 0.2 M sf of under construction
area and 4.4 M sf of future development potential. BIRET has rights to acquire a further 3.7 M sf and rights of
first offer on an additional 6.7 M sf, both currently owned by members of the Brookfield Group.

BIRET is sponsored by an affiliate of Brookfield Asset Management Inc, one of the world’s largest alternative
asset managers and investors, with approximately US$650 billion of assets under management, across real
estate, infrastructure, renewable power, private equity and credit strategies and has a global presence across
more than 30 countries.

The quality of assets owned by BIRET together with the sponsor group’s expertise in owning and operating
assets over several years makes it the preferred “landlord of choice” for tenants.

CONTACT DETAILS

Reema Kundnani
Email reema.kundnani@brookfieldproperties.com; Mobile No +91-9967556572

INVESTOR MATERIAL AND CONFERENCE CALL DETAILS

BIRET has released information on the results and performance for the quarter and nine months ended
December 31, 2021, which includes (i) unaudited condensed standalone and unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements of BIRET, (ii) an investor update presentation. All these materials are
available on our website at https://www.brookfieldindiareit.in/financial-updates/#results, under the “Investors”
section. BIRET will host a conference call on February 14, 2022 at 3 pm IST to discuss the results.

DISCLAIMER

This press release is prepared for general information purposes only without regards to specific objectives,
financial situations or needs of any particular person. It comprises information given in summary form and
neither purports to be complete nor guarantees that such information is true and accurate and should not be
considered as a recommendation to any person to purchase / subscribe to any units, debentures, bonds or
any other securities / instruments issued or proposed to be issued by BIRET (BIRET Securities). Further, this



press release does not constitute or form part of any offer for sale or subscription of or solicitation or invitation
of any offer to buy or subscribe for, or advertisement with respect to, the purchase or sale of BIRET Securities
in any jurisdiction.

The information contained herein is based on management information and estimates. For ease and simplicity
of representation, certain figures may have been rounded. It is only current as of its date/date indicated, has
not been independently verified and may be subject to change without notice. Brookprop Management
Services Private Limited (Manager) in its capacity as the manager of BIRET, BIRET, their affiliates and
advisors do not make any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to, and do not accept any
responsibility or liability with respect to, any loss, howsoever, arising from any use or reliance on this press
release or its content or otherwise arising in connection therewith. No responsibility is assumed to publicly
amend, modify or revise any statements in the press release on the basis of any subsequent development,
information or events, or otherwise. BIRET does not provide any guarantee or assurance with respect to any
distributions or the trading price of its units.

Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may
cause the actual results, financial condition, performance, or achievements of BIRET or industry results, to
differ materially from the results, financial condition, performance or achievements expressed or implied by
such forward-looking statements. Given these risks, uncertainties and other factors, recipients of this press
release are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements.

This press release also contains certain financial measures which are not measures determined based on
GAAP, Ind-AS or any other internationally accepted accounting principles, and the recipient should not
consider such items as an alternative to the historical financial results or other indicators of BIRET 's cash flow
based on Ind-AS.

Each recipient will be solely responsible for its own investigation, assessment and analysis of the market and
the market position of BIRET and should consult its own advisors before taking any decision in relation thereto.

All terms of the disclaimer forming part of the investor presentation for quarter ended December 2021 are
applicable to this press release and this disclaimer is to be read together with such disclaimer.
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Disclaimer

India Real Estate Trust

By reading this presentation (the “Presentation”), you agree to be bound by the following limitations:

This Presentation is for information purposes only without regard to specific objectives, financial situations or needs of any particular person, and should not be disclosed, reproduced, retransmitted, summarized, distributed or
furnished, in whole or in part, to any other person or persons. The material that follows is a Presentation on the information pertaining to key updates of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust (“Brookfield REIT”). We don't assume
responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any statements in the Presentation on the basis of any subsequent development, information or events, or otherwise. This Presentation comprises information given in summary form
and does not purport to be complete and it cannot be guaranteed that such information is true and accurate. For ease and simplicity of representation, certain figures may have been rounded. No representation, warranty or undertaking,
express or implied, is made or assurance given that such statements, views, projections or forecasts, if any, are correct or that any objectives specified herein will be achieved. Neither we, nor any of our affiliates, as such, make any
representation or warranty, express or implied, as to, and do not accept any responsibility or liability with respect to, any loss, howsoever, arising from any use or reliance on this Presentation or its content or otherwise arising in
connection therewith. Unless otherwise stated in this Presentation, the information contained herein is based on management information as they exist as of date/date indicated in this Presentation and estimates. The information
contained herein is subject to change without notice and past performance is not indicative of future results.

Certain information contained herein constitutes forward-looking statements. Due to various risks and uncertainties, actual events or results or the actual performance of Brookfield REIT may differ materially from those reflected or
contemplated in such forward-looking statements. Although Brookfield REIT believes that the anticipated future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements and information are based
upon reasonable assumptions and expectations in light of the information presently available, you should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements and information because they involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of Brookfield REIT to differ materially from anticipated future results, performance or achievement expressed or implied by such
forward-looking statements and information. Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those set forward in the forward-looking statements or information include but are not limited to: general economic
conditions, changes in interest and exchange rates, availability of equity and debt financing and risks particular to underlying portfolio company investments. There is no guarantee that Brookfield REIT will be able to successfully
execute on all or any future deals, projects or exit strategies, achieve leasing plans, secure debt or receive development approvals as set forth in this Presentation. Projected results reflected herein have been prepared based on various
estimations and assumptions made by management, including estimations and assumptions about events that have not yet occurred. Projected results are based on underwriting. Due to various risks, uncertainties and changes beyond
the control of Brookfield, the actual performance of the Brookfield REIT could differ materially from the projected results. There is no assurance, representation or warranty being made by any person that any of the projected results
will be achieved and undue reliance should not be put on them. Industry experts may disagree with the assumptions used in presenting the projected results.

Any changes to assumptions could have a material impact on projections and actual returns. Actual returns on unrealized investments will depend on, among other factors, future operating results, the value of the assets and market
conditions at the time of disposition, legal and contractual restrictions on transfer that may limit liquidity, any related transaction costs and the timing and manner of sale, all of which may differ from the assumptions and
circumstances on which the valuations used in the prior performance data contained herein are based. Accordingly, the actual realized returns on unrealized investments may differ materially from the returns indicated herein.

In considering investment performance information contained herein, you should bear in mind that past performance is not necessarily indicative of future results and there can be no assurance that comparable results will be achieved,
that an investment will be similar to the historic investments presented herein (because of economic conditions, the availability of investment opportunities or otherwise), that targeted returns, diversification or asset allocations will be
met or that an investment strategy or investment objectives will be achieved. Any information regarding prior investment activities and returns contained herein has not been calculated using generally accepted accounting principles
and has not been audited or verified by an auditor or any independent party. Nothing contained herein should be deemed to be a prediction or projection of future performance.

Certain of the information contained herein is based on or derived from information provided by independent third party sources. While Brookfield REIT believes that such information is accurate as of the date it was produced and
that the sources from which such information has been obtained are reliable, Brookfield REIT does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information, and has not independently verified such information or the
assumptions on which such information is based. This document is subject to the assumptions (if any) and notes contained herein.

The information in this Presentation does not take into account your investment objectives, financial situation or particular needs and nothing contained herein should be construed as legal, business or tax advice. Each prospective
investor should consult its own attorney, business adviser and tax advisor as to legal, business, tax and related matters concerning the information contained herein.

This document is just a Presentation and is not intended to be a “prospectus” or “draft offer document” or “offer document” or “final offer document” or “offer letter” or “offering memorandum” (as defined or referred to, as the case
may be, under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules notified thereunder, and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing
of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, as amended, or any other applicable law). This Presentation has not been and will not be reviewed or approved by a regulatory authority in India or elsewhere or by any stock exchange in India or
elsewhere. None of the information contained herein (or in any future communication (written or oral) regarding an investment) is intended to be investment advice with respect to a proposed investment.

If we should at any time commence an offering of units, debentures, bonds or any other securities/ instruments of Brookfield REIT, any decision to invest in any such offer to subscribe for or acquire units, debentures, bonds or any
other securities/ instruments of Brookfield REIT, must be based wholly on the information contained in an offer document or offering circular (including the risk factors mentioned therein) issued or to be issued in connection with any
such offer and not on the contents hereof. Any prospective investor investing in such invitation, offer or sale of securities by Brookfield REIT should consult its own advisors before taking any decision in relation thereto.

The securities of Brookfield REIT have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act, 1933, as amended (“U.S. Securities Act”), or the securities laws of any applicable jurisdiction and these materials do not
constitute or form a part of any offer to sell or solicitation of an offer to purchase or subscribe for any securities in the United States of America or elsewhere in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to
registration under the U.S. Securities Act or the securities laws of any such jurisdiction.
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Brookfield India Real Estate Trust

Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

India’s first and only 100% institutionally managed REIT, achieving strong growth in the first
year with a 32% increase in footprint

18.6 MSF

TOTAL AREA

83%

COMMITTED
OCCUPANCY

Rs 156B

GROSS ASSET VALUE®

7.3 YrS.

WALE

13.9 MSF

OPERATING AREA

87%

EFFECTIVE ECONOMIC
OCCUPANCY®

92%

% OPERATING GAV®

638

OFFICE TENANTS

Post N2 acquisition

Noida (7.3 MSF)

Gurugram (4.0 MSF)

Sk 0.1

5.8 19

Kolkata (5.7 MSF)

3.1 2.7

Total Portfolio (18.6 MSF)

13.9 4.7
Operating Future Dev.

O scnv

(1) Income Support is being provided till March 31, 2024 on the 17% vacant area and to 155,000 SF of upcoming delivery post completion in N2. Income Support will lead to an 87%
Effective Economic Occupancy for the portfolio including N2. The Committed Occupancy of the portfolio including N2 is 83%.

(2) Ason September 30, 2021. GAV of N2 is based on average of two independent valuations.
Note: In-place Rent and WALE are only for the Leased Area and do not consider the impact of Income Support throughout the presentation. 3
Note: All point-in-time and forward-looking metrics include N2, whereas historical metrics pertain only to the pre-acquisition REIT Portfolio throughout the presentation.




Brookfield India Real Estate Trust (Cont’d.) Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Strong inorganic growth pipeline totalling 10.5 MSF in Gurugram and Mumbai

CANDOR
TECHSPACE G1

3.7 MSF 6.7 MSF

LEASABLE AREA LEASABLE AREA

ROFO®M PROPERTIES

Gurugram (3.7 MSF)

3.7 0.1

Rs 48B Rs 113B

GROSS ASSET VALUE® GROSS ASSET VALUE®

\ | Mumbai (6.7 MSF)

10.5 MSF Rs 161B

TOTAL LEASABLE TOTAL GROSS ASSET
AREA VALUE Total Pipeline (10.5 MSF)
8.0 2.5 o YGAY
Operating Future Dev.

(1) Right of First Offer.
(2) Based on the floor price per the Agreement to Purchase signed with the Brookfield Group.
(3) Ason December 31, 2021, based on Manager’s estimates.




Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

High Quality Properties in Gateway Cities

Acquired on January 24, 2022
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Largest IT Park in a key technology hub of Noida

Largest Office SEZ in Noida Mumbai’s only-Private SEZ located in Powai

CANDOR TECHSPACE, SECTOR 62, NOIDA (N1)
2.8 MSF | 19 ACRES

CANDOR TECHSPACE, SECTOR 135, NOIDA (N2) KENSINGTON, POWAI, MUMBAI
4.5 MSF | 30 ACRES 3 1.5 MSF | 9 ACRES

IR e

/ ) " N \ s
Largest Office SEZ in CBD Gurugram Largest Office SEZ in Eastern India with a modern campus
CANDOR TECHSPACE, SECTOR 21, GURUGRAM (G2) CANDOR TECHSPACE, NEWTOWN, KOLKATA (K1)
4.0 MSF | 29 ACRES 5.7 MSF | 48 ACRES




Candor Techspace N2 Acquisition Brookfield

On January 24, 2022, the REIT successfully completed the acquisition of Candor Techspace
N2 for Rs 40 Billion

4.5 MSF 3.6 MSF

TOTAL AREA OPERATING AREA
;
B : '
n : i
u
83% 100% N
COMMITTED EFFECTIVE ECONOMIC :
OCCUPANCY OCCUPANCY®

- v

Rs 40B 90% - |
GROSS ASSET VALUE® OPERATING GAV® @ G genpact CONDUENT "o

—7 TELUS International  sopra oS steria

8.2 Yrs. 21 535,000 SF

WALE OFFICE TENANTS New Leasing
(9M FY22)

282,000 SF

Ongoing Leasing
Discussions

(1) Income Support is being provided till March 31, 2024 on the 17% vacant area and to 155,000 SF of upcoming delivery post completion in N2. Income Support will lead to a n

100% Effective Economic Occupancy.
(2) Ason September 30, 2021. GAV of N2 is based on average of two independent valuations.




Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Candor Techspace N2 Acquisition (Cont’d.)

The acquisition has highly improved our operating metrics as showcased by a 35% increase
in our Operating Area and ¢.400 bps increase in Effective Economic Occupancy®

PRE-ACQUISITION POST-ACQUISITION
PORTFOLIO PORTFOLIO

TOTAL LEASABLE AREA 14.1 MSF 18.6 MSF +32%
OPERATING AREA 10.3 MSF 13.9 MSF +35%
EFFECTIVE ECONOMIC OCCUPANCY 83% 87%D +400 bps
WALE 7.0 Yrs. 7.3 Yrs.
SHARE OF TOP 5 TENANTS BY AREA 60% 52%
GAV® Rs 117 Billion Rs 156 Billion +34%
NDCF Rs 4.83©) Rs 5.02 +4%

(1) Income Support is being provided till March 31, 2024 on the 17% vacant area and to 155,000 SF of upcoming delivery post completion in N2. Income Support will lead to an 87%
Effective Economic Occupancy for the portfolio including N2.

(2) Ason September 30, 2021. GAV of N2 is based on average of two independent valuations.

(3) Based on an implied quarterly average derived from FY22 NDCF guidance of Rs 22 per unit (including FY21 stub period since IPO) and considering the impact of 40 bps reduction
in borrowing costs.




Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Successful Preferential Issue

First preferential issue to institutional investors by an Indian REIT, with strong participation from
the sponsor reiterating Brookfield Group’s commitment to our REIT

PREFERENTIAL ISSUANCE

ISSUE SIZE Rs 9.5 Billion

SBI
10%

Brookfield
Group
48%

ISSUE PRICE Rs 294.25 / unit

HDFC Life
Insurance
21%

PREMIUM TO IPO

PRICE 7.0%

# UNITS ISSUED 32.3 Million HDEC Ltd

21%

Commitment by reputed long-term institutional investors is a testament of our high quality
portfolio and positive business outlook




Continued Leasing Traction Across Assets Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Assets managed by the Brookfield Group have seen strong leasing with marquee tenants,
demonstrating the demand for high-quality, Grade-A institutional assets

e

PREVIOUS LOCATION

| |

QlFY22 | Q3 FY22 Q3 FY22 i
CANDOR TECHSPACE N2 i CANDOR TECHSPACE G2 CANDOR TECHSPACE G1 |
: (Identified Asset) |

| |

| I

1 9 |

SAMSUNG @Legato \— Encore |
Relocation: From a standalone asset to i First center in North India: Already has Relocation: From a standalone assetin :
our campus-style office park : centers in South India (~840k SF) Gurugram CBD to our campus-style office park |
377K SF i 211K SF 222K SF |

AREA LEASED : AREA LEASED AREA LEASED :

| |

10 Yrs. | 15 Yrs. 9 Yrs. |

LEASE TERM | LEASE TERM LEASE TERM :

| |

| I

~40% | 291K SF 58K SF ;

RENTAL PREMIUM OVER : EXPANSION OPTION EXPANSION OPTION :

| I




ESG Accolades

Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

We continue to receive recognition for our ESG efforts across our properties

1SO 14001

RATED ISO 9001, I1ISO
14001 AND ISO 45001 BY
TUV SUDW

P

5S GOLD RATINGS BY
cH®

(1) All REIT Portfolio assets.

c*

4
LATINY

PLATINUM RATINGS BY
IGBC®

& & 4
¥ BrITISH ’

SAFETY
COUNCIL 3
word
” ‘ of Honour
SWORD OF HONOUR FOR
SAFETY BY BSC®

1ST PLACE STATE ENERGY CONSERVATION AWARD
2020

STATE LEVEL ENERGY CONSERVATION AWARD
‘ 2 1 Raniit St )

€ <
2’ble Minister

" e A ir f : ngyapg g’
= f S 4

£

e

Candor Techspace G2, Gurugram
Awarded on January 11, 2022

Recognition received on account of operational best
practices and energy efficient upgrades that resulted in:

* 31% reduction in energy consumption

» Over Rs 230 Million of annual reduction in energy
costs®

(2) Candor Techspace G2, Candor Techspace N1; IGBC Gold Rating for Candor Techspace K1.
(3) Candor Techspace N1, Candor Techspace K1.

(4) FY20 vs FY109.
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Technology Hiring Remains Strong for Top Multinationals Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust
|

Driven by strong order books, technology hiring is expected to continue in the foreseeable

future. We envisage strong leasing recovery amidst back-to-office plans to seat this
enhanced workforce

EMPLOYEE HEADCOUNT (IN THOUSANDS)

= —— _—————

——-——-

S_—_—— S _——- S_—_—— S _——- S ——- S _——-

(€0

309

TCS Cognizant Infosys

Capgemini Wipro

m Mar'20 (Pre-pandemic) # Dec'21 (Current) <_> Headcount Growth

Source: Quarterly Filings and Investor Presentations.

(1) Capgemini employee headcount is for the period ended September 30, 2021.



Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Favorable Demand-Supply Dynamics

With absorption expected to outpace supply in the REIT micro-markets over the next three
years, our assets are poised to realize occupancy gains

STRONG DEMAND OUTLOOK LIMITED FUTURE SUPPLY
AVERAGE NET ABOSROPTION IN REIT INDIA OFFICE — NEXT 3 YEAR SUPPLY
MICRO-MARKETS (MSF) TOTAL = 155 MSF
[ ! T Tt .
, Pre-Covid ! ' Post-Covid !
1

___________ 1 - Direct Micro-
market, 8%

Non-REIT
Markets,
76%
REIT
Markets,
24%
2017 - 2019 2022E - 2024E Other Micro-
markets, 16%
*  Net Absorption forecast of 13.3 MSF over the next three *  Our micro-markets represent 13% of office stock today but
years, outpacing pre-Covid absorption only 8% (c.12.3 MSF) of next 3-year supply

Source: CW research.
(1) Average annual net absorption from 2017 to 2019.
(2) Average annual net absorption projected from 2022 to 2024.



Institutional Dominance Br°°kf'e'd

Our assets have accounted for more than half of the net absorption in their micro-markets in
the last 5 years and are well-positioned to benefit from uptick in demand for office space

REIT VERSUS MICRO-MARKET ABSORPTION®
(MSF) (CY17 - CY21)

50%+

Share in —> 7.9
Absorption

3.8
3.0
2.1 18
11
0.6 -

Gurugram Noida® Kolkata Total
mREIT = Micro-market

Source: CW research.
(1) Kensington is excluded because the asset was operating at more than 95% occupancy before FY18.
(2) Includes both Candor Techspace N1 and N2, compared with their respective micro-markets.
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Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Q3 FY22 | Business Highlights

We have witnessed strong leasing demand across our assets this quarter with 0.5 MSF of
gross leasing and an additional 0.3 MSF of expansion options

Collecti ~99% ~7% Collections of operating lease rentals remained robust at ~99%
ollections i i
Ro epnet;aé'rgohsgseed AVG. Egggg;g nos 7% average escalation on 0.5 MSF leased area
Witnessed strong leasing across our assets
o New leasing of 90,000 SF in Kensington
. 536,000 SF 291,000 SF o New leasing of 211,000 SF and renewals of 19,000 SF in G2
Leasing Gross Expansion . ,
Leasing Options o New leasing of 57,000 SF in N1
o Renewed 158,000 SF in K1
Signed additional Expansion Options of 291,000 SF in G2
Development 80,000 SF 18,000 SF Received OC for Amenity Block Il in N1 in January 2022
and Capex Delivered in Jan 2022 Pre-leased Pre-leased 18,000 SF to an entertainment company in October 2021
6% 270 Sword of Honour for Safety by British Safety Council for N1 and K1
0
ESG, Health Reductionin energy  Redustion ir?water Secured IGBC Platinum certification for G2 and N1, and IGBC Gold
and Safety consumption across intensity YoY rating for K1

assets YoY

Achieved 5S Gold Rating from ClI

16
(1) Average escalation is weighted by rent; Average escalation on G2, N1 and K1 is ~14.7% (3 year escalations) and on Kensington is ~4.7% (annual escalations). -



Q3 FY22 | Financial Highlights Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

We expect to see an uptick in NOI and NDCF in subsequent quarters on account of the
recent leasing success, N2 acquisition and borrowing cost reduction

OPERATING LEASE RENTALS NDCF BORROWING COST

Rs 1,447 Million Rs 4.74 per unit c.40 bps

4.3% YOY decrease Rs 17.59 per unit since IPO Reduction post N2 acquisition®

KEY PROPERTY INCOME METRICS

MILLIONS Q3 FY22 Q3FY21 VAR. % KEY DRIVERS
« Contractual escalations offset by new vacancies
Income from Operating + To improve due to the new leasing of 0.4 MSF achieved in

Rs 1447 Rs1,512 (4.3%) Q3 FY22, which will contribute Rs 71 million per quarter to

our OLR

Lease Rentals (OLR)

¢ Reduction of Rs 65 million in the OLR

Net Operating Income (NOI) 1,502 1,626 (7.7%) | + Reduction of Rs 59 million in CAM margins on account of
reduced occupancy

% Margin on OLR 104% 108%

(1) Interest rate reduction effective from February 01, 2022.




Q3 FY22 | Distributions Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

We are distributing Rs 5.00 per unit for Q3 FY22, of which 34% will be tax-free

Millions Q3 FY22
Income from Operating Lease Rentals Rs 1,447 o
Rs 1,514 Million Rs 5.00
CAM / Other Revenue 504
DISTRIBUTION DISTRIBUTION PER UNIT
CAM [/ Other Direct Expenses (449)
NOI Rs 1,502
Other Expenses™ (37) FEB 21, 2022 By FEB 26, 2022
EBITDA Rs 1,465 RECORD DATE PAYOUT DATE
Cash Taxes (Net of Refund) 10
Working Capital and Ind-AS Adjustments (122) DISTRIBUTION PER UNIT COMPONENTS
Cashflow from Operations Rs 1,352
Capex (197)
0
Net Financing Activities?® 691 Rs 162,32%
Interest Cost on External Debt (397)
NDCF (SPV Level) Rs 1,450
Interest on Shareholder Debt 957
Dividends 27 Rs 3.28)66%
Rs 0.10, 2%
Repayment of Shareholder Debt 484
REIT Expenses® (34)

NDCF (REIT Level)
H |nterest ® Dividend ® Repayment of Shareholder Loan

NDCF per Unit (REIT Level)

(1) Includes Property Management Fees and Net Other Income/(Expenses).
(2) Including debt drawdown, investment in fixed deposits, interest on fixed deposit & security deposit, non-refundable advances, other borrowing cost, and excluding debt drawn
earmarked for future capex.
(3) Includes changes in working capital and net of interest on fixed deposit.
(4) Includes Rs 9 Million (Rs 0.03 / unit) of interest on fixed deposits at the REIT.
Note: All per unit metrics exclude the new units issued pursuant to the Preference Issue to finance the N2 acquisition. The new units are entitled to receive distributions from next quarter.



Significantly Complete and Stable Portfolio Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

92% of gross asset value is in operating properties, which are 83% occupied with a long-
dated WALE of 7.3 years

Area (in MSF) Leased Area Metrics
. . In-place Asset
' ' ' (Rs PSF) (Rs Bn)
Kensington 15 - 15 1.4 7 87% 2.3 Rs 97 Rs 26
G2 3.9 0.1 4.0 3.1 14 81% 8.4 79 44
N1 1.9 0.9 2.8 14 22 74% 6.9 47 21
K1 3.1 2.7 5.7 2.7 15 87% 7.7 42 26
Pre-acquisition 10.3 3.7 14.1 8.5 540 83% 7.0 Rs 65 Rs 117
N2 3.6 0.9 4.5 3.0 21 83% / 100% 8.2 52 40
83% / 87%
ASSET VALUE BY GEOGRAPHY® ASSET VALUE BY STATUS®
m Operating
m Gurugram
= Noida = Q4 FY22 Delivery
= Kolkata
Mumbai m Development

Potential

(1) 4 tenants are present across more than one office park for the pre-acquisition REIT Portfolio.

(2) 8tenants are present across more than one office park for the portfolio including N2.

(3) GAV as on September 30, 2021. GAV of N2 is based on average of two independent valuations. 19
Note: Econ. Occ. % denotes Effective Economic Occupancy post N2 acquisition.



Deep Rooted Tenant Relationships Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Technology-led, high credit quality tenant roster, with an established track record of tenant
expansion

SECTOR DIVERSIFICATION OF TENANTS TOP 10 TENANTS BY LEASED AREA
% Leased Growth since
Others. 856 Tenant # Parks Area Mar 15®
Heal;f;/;:are, Technology, 52% TCS 3 14% -
Accenture 3 14% +81%
Hardware, .
7% Cognizant 3 13% +126%
Sapient 2 5% +147%
Genpact 2 5% +30%
RBS 1 4% +7%
Barclays 1 3% +60%
Consulting, ' Samsung 1 3% New |
18% : :
| Steria 1 3% +11%
BESI. 109? Capgemini 2 2% +11%

Total

L= Additions to top 10 tenants from Candor Techspace N2

(1) Adjusted for areas in Kensington, which were inherited in 2017 when the property management was taken over.
(2) Banking, Financial Services and Insurance.



New Leasing and Renewals

Gross leasing of 536,000 SF during the quarter with a robust near-term pipeline

SIGNED LEASES / RENEWALS®

Tenant / Industry Industry
XPO India Business Services
L&T Hydrocarbon Oil & Gas
Legato Healthcare
Pentair Technology
Trangile Technology
New Leasing

Consilio Consulting
TCS Technology
Renewals

Total 536,000 SF

LOIs Under Execution

(1) Does not include the 18,000 SF pre-leased to an entertainment company in N1.

(2) Average leasing rent and lease term are weighted by area.

Assets
Kensington
Kensington

G2

N1

N1
359,000 SF

G2

K1

177,000 SF

56,000 SF

Rs 82.4 PSF

AVERAGE RENT ON NEW LEASING®

13.3 Yrs.

AVERAGE TERM ON NEW LEASING®

/80,000 SF

ONGOING LEASING DISCUSSIONS

291,000 SF

EXPANSION OPTIONS SIGNED

Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust



New Leasing and Renewals (Cont’d.) Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Portfolio has a well staggered lease expiry profile and provides an opportunity to capture an
attractive mark-to-market spread

KEY HIGHLIGHTS LEASE EXPIRY SCHEDULE

mmm Area Expiring (MSF) msm Renewed =e=Cumulative Expiry (% of Rentals)

* Expiries: 237,000 SF area vacated
during the quarter

» Additional 137,000 SF of area due
for expiry in Q4 FY22 primarily due
to the addition of N2

SIGNIFICANTLY IMPROVED
EXPIRY PROFILE

Reduction in Cumulative Expiry
(% of Rentals) until FY25 from 40%
in Q2 FY 22 to 28% in Q3 FY22
primarily due to the addition of N2

OMFY22 Q4FY22E FY23E FY24E FY25E
Rent at expiry (Rs PSF)® Rs 71 Rs 53 Rs 93 Rs 77 Rs 84
MTM Spread %® 5% 34% 59% 21%

(1) Excludes amenity areas.
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Summary Balance Sheet

Our business is well-capitalized, backed by a strong balance sheet

MILLIONS DECEMBER 31, 2021

Liabilities and Equity

Total Equity Rs 80,418
Borrowings® 22,327
Security Deposits 3,642
Other Liabilities 1,966

Total Rs 108,354

Assets
Investment Property Rs 98,910
Investment Property Under Development 993
Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,241
Other Assets 6,209

Total Rs 108,354

NOTES:

a) Other Liabilities include trade & other payables, capital creditors, statutory dues, deferred income & provisions
b) Other Assets include income tax advances, security deposits, restricted cash balances, unbilled revenues, trade & other receivables

(1) Outstanding borrowings of Rs 22,500 Million adjusted for processing fee of Rs 173 Million which has been netted off.

Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust



Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Post Acquisition Capital Structure
Simple capital structure, low-cost asset level debt and significant debt headroom will continue
to be our strengths post acquisition

DEBT SUMMARY KEY DEBT FEATURES
AMOUNT INTEREST
(BILLION) COSTP.A.® Asset-level No zero-coupon
Debt features
Pre-acquisition Portfolio Debt Rs 22.6 6.75%
Drawdown for N2 acquisition() Rs 14.0 6.78% 6.76% Average AAA Stable
Interest Rate® (CRISIL)
External Debt at N2(2 20.5 6.75%
DEBT HEADROOM
Repayment of N2 debt (5.5)
TS ~ oIS ~ 49%
(_7.15% (_6.76%

Debt as on February 01, 2022 Rs 51.5

GAV@®) Rs 156.3

LTV 33%

December 31, 2021 Post N2 acquisition Regulatory Cap

(1) Debt has been raised by the SPVs of the pre-acquisition portfolio for the N2 acquisition. - .
(2) Ason December 31, 2021. (_) Cost of Borrowing

(3) Ason September 30, 2021.

(4) Per annum paid quarterly, floating rate loan.



NDCF | Walkdown

Millions Stub FY21 + Q1 FY22

Income from Operating Lease Rentals
CAM / Other Revenue

Revenue from Operations

CAM / Other Direct Expenses

NOI

Property Management Fees

Net Other Income/(Expenses)

EBITDA

Cash Taxes (Net of Refund)

Working Capital and Ind-AS Adjustments
Repayment of Tenant Deposits
Cashflow from Operations

Capex

Net Financing Activities®

Non Refundable Advances

Interest Cost on External Debt

NDCF (SPV Level)

Rs 2,559
941

Rs 3,500
(787)

Rs 2,713
(53)
(1,199)
Rs 1,461
470

933
(118)

Rs 2,746
272)

90

153
(783)

Q2 FY22

Rs 1,561
556

Rs 2,117
(489)

Rs 1,628
(57)

(10)

Rs 1,561
(39)

199
(243)

Rs 1,482
(141)
346

68

(387)

Rs 1,368?)

Q3 FY22

Rs 1,447
504

Rs 1,951
(449)

Rs 1,502
(40)

2

Rs 1,465
10

(96)

(26)

Rs 1,352
(297)
556

136
(397)

Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Stub FY21 + 9M FY22
Rs 5,568
2,000

Rs 7,568
(1,725)
Rs 5,843
(150)
(1,207)
Rs 4,486
445
1,036
(387)

Rs 5,581
(609)
992

356
(1,568)

Interest on Shareholder Debt
Dividends

Repayment of Shareholder Debt
REIT Expenses®

NDCF (REIT Level)

1,529
150
297
(31)

1,315
30
605

®)

Rs 1,947®

Rs 6.43?

957

27
484
(34)

3,802
207
1,386
(68)

Rs 5,327
Rs 17.59

NDCF per Unit (REIT Level)

(1) Including debt drawdown, investment in fixed deposits, interest on fixed deposit & security deposit, other borrowing cost, and excluding debt drawn earmarked for future capex.

(2) The variance between SPV level NDCF and REIT level NDCF is primarily on account of utilization of opening cash at the SPV level.

(3) Includes changes in working capital and net of interest on fixed deposit.

Note: All per unit metrics exclude the new units issued pursuant to the Preference Issue to finance the N2 acquisition. The new units are entitled to receive distributions from next quarter.
Note: Stub FY21 represents the 50-day period from February 08, 2021 to March 31, 2021.



SR/ )

T

Inorganic Growth Pipeline
i | N E..i....ll“l-llll-llllll-l!!ll “ i Illlmmmilin‘lmmnn_mv

< s X




Brookfield Group’s Footprint in India

Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Brookfield Group owns a 100% interest in a high quality pan-India office portfolio spanning 28
MSF in total area and 20 MSF of operating area

CANDOR G1, GURUGRAM

oA

ECOWORLD, BANGALORE

- g
ECOSPACE, BANGALORE

CATEGORY CANDOR TECHSPACE G1 ROFO PROPERTIES OTHER BROOKFIELD ASSETS
Total Area 3.7 MSF 6.7 MSF 18.0 MSF
Operating Area 3.7 MSF 4.3 MSF 12.4 MSF
Markets Gurugram Mumbai Bangalore, Chennai, Pune

. REIT has the sole option to REIT has a right of first offer when
Rights L . NA

purchase existing shareholders trigger sale

Validity August 2022 February 2026 NA




Candor Techspace G1 Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Candor Techspace G1 achieved 100% completion during the year and is currently under
lease up

3.7 MSF 100%

TOTAL AREA COMPLETED

716% 90%

COMMITTED SAME-STORE
OCCUPANCY OCCUPANCY®W

Rs 48B Rs 71 PSF

GROSS ASSET VALUE® IN-PLACE RENT

90%

MNC Tenants

7.9 Yrs. 19 276,000 SF

WALE OFFICE TENANTS New Leasing
(9M FY22)

99%+

Collections for Q3 FY22

127,000 SF

Ongoing Leasing
Discussions

(1) Same-store Occupancy excludes areas developed since September 2020 of 908,000 SF.
(2) Based on the floor price per the Agreement to Purchase signed with the Brookfield Group.
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Our ESG Strategy

Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Committed to industry-leading sustainable development to deliver long-term value to our

business, partners and communities

OUR GUIDING PRINCIPLES

] Mitigate the impact of our operations
E on the environment

oooo Begoodstewards in the communities
llm\YmY,m\YmS in which we operate and ensure the
wellbeing and safety of our employees

v= Conduct business according to the
— highest ethical and legal standards.

OUR DECARBONIZATION COMMITMENT

Committed to

NET ZERO
by 2050

OUR DECARBONIZATION PATHWAY

Reductions in
energy demand
and consumption
at every asset

Renewable
energy sourcing
across assets

Judicious use of
offsets for
remaining
emissions




Key Ongoing ESG Initiatives

Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Through continuous improvements we ensure efficient, resilient, future-fit assets that
support the needs of our tenants, communities and the planet

> Integrating automation and smart building management
> LZ) 60/ systems led to increased operational efficiency
O] :
o W 0 Upgraded chillers, motors and AHUs across assets to
'-é O REDUCTION INENERGY  reduce energy intensity®)
e INTENSITY . - .
L Conducted energy conservation trainings with tenants and
w operations staff as part of Energy Conservation Day, 2021
5 0
w 9 7 A) Waste segregation with recycling of organic waste to
8 :: REDUCTION IN WASTE reduce waste intensity®
>z INTENSITY Reuse of rainwater and treated wastewater along with drip
8 ] 27 (y irrigation to reduce water intensity®
0
Z aunched square foot farming for tenants to grow organic
o 0 Launched foot f for tenants t
O REDUCTION IN WATER vegetables on site
®) INTENSITY
= : . .
> Z Set up computer labs in 5 schools enabling digital and
= UEJ computer education in schools for 1,373 students
Z . .
oo 6 Partnered with Slam Out Loud to provided art-based
§ 8 NON-PROEIT education to 730 students
e "'>J PARTNERSHIPS Adopted school in Tikri and undertook infrastructure
O uw enhancements and soft skills training
[m)

(1) Energy, waste, and water intensity reductions are based on actual reduction in consumption YoY in Q3 FY22.

ENERGY CONSERVATION
TRAINING SESSIONS

SQUARE FOOT ORGANIC
FARM @ KENSINGTON

INFRASTRUCTURE
ENHANCEMENTS AT TIKRI

SCHOOL



Progress on Net Zero prookfiend

We are actively tracking our emissions and are closely working with all our stakeholders to
achieve a Net Zero carbon future by 2050 or sooner

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS (‘000 Mt CO2e) ENERGY CONSUMPTION (MILLION UNITS)
17 2
1
85 ) 127 123
FY19 FY20 FY21 YTD FY22 FY19 FY20 FY21 YTD FY22

B Scope 2 Emissions  m Scope 1 Emissions

WATER USAGE (‘000 KILO LITRES) SOLID WASTE GENERATION (TONS)
404 364
1,066 1147 114 FA )
435
.
FY19 FY20 Fy2l YTD FY22 FY19 FY20 FY21 YTD FY22
mWater Usage = Water Recycled

(1) Consumption reductions in FY21 and FY22 are primarily attributable to lower physical occupancy on account of restrictions due to COVID.
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Detailed Lease Expiry Schedule

Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Area Expiring (‘000 SF)

% of Gross Rentals®

In-place rent at Expiry (Rs

Year / Asset PSF)®
Q4 FY22E
Kensington - - -
G2 49 2% 90
N1 24 2% 41
N2 127 4% 51
K1 92 1% 48
Total — REIT 291 2% Rs 53
FY23E
Kensington 373 28% Rs 104
G2 90 3% 90
N1 15 2% -
N2 59 2% 55
K1 76 2% 48
Total — REIT 613 7% Rs 93
FY24E
Kensington 745 48% Rs 91
G2 7 0% -
N1 233 14% 40
N2 76 2% 57
K1 1 0% -
Total — REIT 1,063 11% Rs 77
FY25E
Kensington 145 15% Rs 148
G2 216 6% 92
N1 265 17% 44
N2 51 2% 77
K1 4 0% -
Total — REIT 680 7% Rs 84

(1) Excludes amenity areas.



Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Ongoing Capex and Upgrades

Rs 2,778 Million of capex projects underway across new tower developments and upgrades
to existing towers. Capex including interest during construction to be financed through debt

ESTIMATED PENDING COSTS
ONGOING PROJECTS COMPLETION DATE (MILLIONS)
Asset Upgrades/Tenant Improvements
Kensington Q4 FY23 Rs 94
G2 Q1 FY23 37
N1 Q1 FY23 46
N2 Q3 FY23 111
K1l Q1 FY23 54
Sub Total Rs 342
New Development
N2 — Tower 11A Q4 FY22 Rs 229
K1 — Mixed Use Development Q1 FY26 2,207
Sub Total Rs 2,436

Total Rs 2,778



Property Income | Walkdown

MILLIONS

Income from Operating Lease
Rentals (OLR)

(+) CAM / Other Revenue

Revenue from Operations

(-) CAM / Other Direct Expenses

Net Operating Income (NOI)

% Margin on OLR

Q3 FY22

Rs 1,447

504

Rs 1,951

(449)

Rs 1,502

104%

Q3 FY21

Rs 1,512

621

Rs 2,133

(506)

Rs 1,626

108%

Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

KEY DRIVERS

Rs 65 million / 4.3% YOY decrease due to new vacancies
offset by contractual escalations

Rs 117 million / 18.8% YQY decrease primarily due to new
vacancies and reduction in CAM expenses (cost-plus
contracts)

Rs 57 million / 11.3% YoY decrease due to rationalization of
O&M expenses during period of low physical attendance



Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Property Income | Consolidation Details

INCOME FROM
MILLIONS OPERATING LEASE REVENUE FROM NET OPERATING INCOME (NOI)®

RENTALS (OLR) OPERATIONS

Q3FY22 Q3FY21 Q3FY22 Q3FY21 Q3 FY22 % OLR  Q3FY21 % OLR
Kensington Rs 399 Rs 373 Rs 430 Rs 419 Rs 364 91% Rs 363 97%
G2 523 616 721 916 533 102% 665 108%
N1 189 174 306 288 202 107% 185 106%
K1 335 349 494 510 354 106% 372 107%
CIOP 83 78 49 41
Intercompany (83) (78)

Eliminations®

Rs 1,512 Rs 1,951 Rs 1,502 Rs 1,626

(1) The NOI at SPV level is presented without intercompany eliminations.
(2) Revenue earned by CIOP gets eliminated with corresponding operating and maintenance expenses at SPV level.



Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Structure and Indebtedness

Manager .
(BMSPL) Brookfield
India Real Estate Trust
100% 100%
SPV DEBT SUMMARY (MILLIONS)® FPPL CKOHSPL SPPL CIOP
ASSETS KENSINGTON G2 +K1 N1 CIOP TOTAL
Shareholder Debt by REIT (12.5% p.a.p.q.) Rs 7,775 Rs 23,234 Rs 3,893 - Rs 34,902
External Debt (7.15% p.a.p.q.) 6,800 13,150 2,550 - 22,500
Total SPV Debt (Gross) Rs 14,575 Rs 36,384 Rs 6,443 - Rs 57,402
Less: Shareholder Debt by REIT (34,902)

Consolidated REIT Debt (Gross) Rs 22,500

(1) Ason December 31, 2021.
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Glossary (1/2)

Gross Asset Value / Asset Value
Committed Occupancy
Same-store Occupancy
WALE

In-place Rent

REIT Portfolio

Gl

N2

Identified Assets
Agreements to Purchase
ROFO Properties
Re-leasing Spread

Mark-to-market Headroom / Spread

Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

The market value as determined by the Valuer as of September 30, 2021

(Occupied Area + Completed Area under Letters of Intent)

In %
Completed Area

Represents Committed Occupancy for areas where the occupancy certificate was received on
or before March 31, 2020

Weighted Average Lease Expiry based on area. Calculated assuming tenants exercise all their
renewal options post expiry of their initial lock-in period

Rental income from leased area for the month excluding fit-out and car parking income on a per
square foot basis

Assets comprising four office parks (Kensington, Mumbai; G2, Gurugram; N1, Noida; K1,
Kolkata)

Candor Techspace G1 (Candor Techspace, Sector 48, Gurugram)

Candor Techspace N2 (Candor Techspace, Sector 135, Noida)

Two office parks (G1, Gurugram; N2, Noida) for which Brookfield REIT has entered into
Agreements to Purchase

The agreements entered into by Brookfield REIT pursuant to which it has a right to acquire the
securities of the companies owning the Identified Assets

Office assets for which Brookfield REIT has entered into a right-of-first-offer (ROFO) agreement
Refers to the realized change in base rent between the leases signed and leases expiring at in-

place rents, reflected as a % change

Refers to the potential change in base rent between new leases signed at market rates and
leases expiring at in-place rents, reflected as a % change




Glossary (2/2)

Operating Lease Rentals (OLR)
Net Operating Income (NOI)

NDCF
Effective Economic Occupancy

Income Support
Total Portfolio
Brookfield Group
FPPL
CKOHSPL
SPPL

SDPL

CIOoP

BMSPL

Brookfield

India Real Estate Trust

Revenue from leasing of premises including Warm Shell rent, fit-out rent and car parking
Income

Net Operating Income calculated by subtracting Direct Operating Expenses from Revenue
from Operations

Net distributable cash flows (non-GAAP measure). Please refer to pg. 285-287 of the Offer
Document for calculation methodology

Sum of Leased Areas and any eligible areas under any income
support arrangement (excluding Leased Areas)
Operating Area

Monetary support provided by Mountainstar India Office Parks Private Limited (MIOP) to SDPL
Noida with respect to eligible areas under the Income Support Agreement

In %

Together, REIT Portfolio and Candor Techspace N2

Brookfield Asset Management Inc. and its affiliates

Festus Properties Private Limited

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited

Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited

Seaview Developers Private Limited

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED STANDALONE
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the “"Investment Manager”)
(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Brookfield India Real Estate
Trust)

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Standalone Interim Financial
Statements of BROOKFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST (“'the REIT"”), which comprise
the unaudited Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2021, the unaudited
Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the unaudited Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash flow for quarter and nine
months ended December 31, 2021, the unaudited Condensed Standalone Statement of
Changes in Unitholders’ Equity for the nine months ended December 31, 2021, and the
unaudited Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow for the quarter and nine months ended
December 31, 2021 as an additional disclosure in accordance with Paragraph 6 of Annexure
A to the Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated
December 29, 2016 along with summary of the significant accounting policies and select
explanatory notes (together hereinafter referred as the “Condensed Standalone Interim
Financial Statements”).

The Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the
Investment Manager and approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager,
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular No.
CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 ("REIT Regulations”); Indian Accounting
Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” (“"Ind AS 34"), prescribed under Rule 2(1)(a) of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the
REIT Regulations. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Condensed Standalone
Interim Financial Statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review of the Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements in
accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 ‘Review of Interim
Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim financial information
consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment Manager’s personnel responsible
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures.
A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Standards
on Auditing issued by ICAI and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we
would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

/ Zaaskiy Page 1 of 2
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Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
Condensed Standalone Interim Financial Statements has not been prepared in accordance
with the REIT Regulations, Ind AS 34, prescribed under Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 10(a)(i) which describe the presentation of “Unit Capital” as
“Equity” to comply with REIT Regulations. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Reg. No. 015125N)

W

Anand Subramanian

Partner

(Membership No. 110815)
(UDIN: 22110815ABIABH5339)

Place: Bengaluru
Date: February 11, 2022
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Brookfield India Real Estate Trust
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Cond i Standalone Balance Sheet

As at As at
Particulars Note 31 December 2021 31 March 2021
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ASSETS
Non-Current assets
Financial assets
-Investmenls 3 45,044 88 45,044.88
-Loans 4 34,502.00 36,100.00
Non-current tax assets (net) 5 15.89 16.92
Other non-current assets 6 30.00 30.00
Total non-current assets 79,992.77 81,191.80
Current assets
Financial assets
-Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,786.82 1,618.29
-Other financial assets 8 542.30 931.05
Other current assets 9 278 -
Total current assets 2,331.90 2,549.34
TOTAL ASSETS 82,324.67 B3,741.14
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Unit Capital 10 80,B77.29 81,774.78
Other equity 11 1,396.66 626.23
Total equity 82,273.95 82,401.01
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
-Trade payables 12
total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises 22.08 21.79
and small enterprises
-Other financial liabilities 13 19.73 1,248.33
Other current liabilities 14 8.91 70,01
Total current liabilities 50,72 1,340.13
Total liabilities 50,72 1,340.13
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 82,324.67 83,741.14
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 015125N

P

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
{as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Anand Subramanian
Partner

Membership No: 110815
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 11 February 2022

Ankur Gupta

Director

DIN No. 08687570
Place: Mumbai

Date: 11 February 2022

%‘_—'

Sanjeev Kumar Sharma
Chief financial officer
DIN No. 00211963

Place: Mumbai

Date: 11 February 2022

TE “""Lp

Alok Aggarwal

Chief executive officer
DIN No. 00009964
Place: Mumbai

Date: 11 February 2022
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Brookfield India Real Estate Trust
Condensed Standalone Financial Stat t
(All amounts are in Rupees million unless otherwise stated)

Cond i Standalone Stat of Changes in Unitholder's Equity
Unit in Nos. Amount
(a) Unit Capital
Balance as on 17 July 2020* - &
Add: Units issued (refer note 10) 4 302,801,601 8327044
Less: Issue expenses - (1,495.66)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 302,801,601 81,774.78
Balance as on 01 April 2021 302,801,601 81,774.78
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2021# - (297.05)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2021# - (605.60)
Add: Reversal of issue expenses no longer payable - 5.16
Balance as at 31 December 2021 302,801,601 80,877.29
(b) Other equity
Parficulirs Retained earnings
Balance at 17 July 2020* .
Profit for the period ended 31 March 2021 626.23
Other comprehensive income for the period ended 31 March 2021 =
as at 31 March 2021 626.23
Balance as on 01 April 2021 626,23
Add: Profit for the nine months ended 31 December 2021 3,501.40
Add: Other comprehensive income for the nine months ended 31 December 2021 -
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2021# (1,519.76)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2021# (1211.21)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 1,396.66

#The distributions made by Trust to its Unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Brookfield India REIT under the REIT Regulations,
(Refer foot note 2 and 3 of statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows)

Significant accounting policies (refer note 2)

" The accompanying notes from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.
* Since Brookfield India REIT was registered pursuant to a trust deed dated 17 July 2020, the management has provided the information in Condensed Standalone
Statement of Changes in Unitholder's Equity with effect from said date i.e, 17 July 2020 for period ended 31 March 2021,

As per our report of even date attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 015125N (as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

L

qu

t}u._»/f"u = Tl .,-O

Anand Subramanian Ankur Gupta Alok Aggarwal
Partner Director Chief executive officer
Membership No: 110815 DIN No. 0BGE7570 DIN No. 00009964
Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 February 2022 Date: 11 February 2022 Date: |1 February 2022
Cses

Sanjeev Kumar Sharma

Chief financial officer

DIN No, 00211963

Place: Mumbai

Date: 11 February 2022



Brookficld Indin Real Estate Trust
e ;

(All amounts are in Rupees million unless otherwise stated)

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) g to guidance under Paragruph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/MIMD/DF/146/2016

For the quarter For the quarter For the nine months

Sr No. Particulnrs 3 ended ended ended
31 December 2021 30 September 2021 31 December 2021
I Cush flows received from Amw_'\f-, CIOP/Operating Service Provider and any investment eatity in the form of
» Interest (net of applicabla taxes, il any) 957.46 131526 380175
Di“indn {net of applicable taxey, if any) 27.00 30,00 207.00
f Sharcholder Debi (or deb amlolwl' similar instruments) 484.00 605.00 1386.00
P:weeﬁhnm‘,‘ ka/ capital reduction/ P {nulnl' L "uan) - . =
2 Add: Proceeds from sale, (tronsfer or liquidation or dization) of & including cash
equivalents), assets or shares affinterest in Asset SPVs, or -nvyl‘uru ef fand raise sl Brookfield HEIT level, adfusted for
the following:
= Applicable copitnl geins and other taxes - - -
* Ralated debis softled or due 1o bo setiled from sale procecds . . a

* Direetly mitributohle runsaction costs - H =
* Proceeds reinvested or plannad 16 be reinveried a3 per REIT Regulations - . -

ol in shares or det or shareholder debt of Asset SPVs and/ or CIOP/ Operating Sorvice Provider or = ~ -
other rimilar investments

= Lending to Asscta SPVa and/ or CEOW Openallng Sm‘nn Pmndel - - -
Add: Proceeds (rom sals (transfer of L ion o1 herwise realization) of i cais, mscts or shares off - = &

interest in Assel SPVs not distribated pnmnnl 1o &n ullhrplnnw re-invest es per REIT Rngu!lllm. ir such proceods are
not intended to be invested mbsequently.

Add: Any other § fved ot the Brookfield REIT level and not captured herein, or refund/ waiver/ cessation of any 952 940 20.06
expenses’ linhility,
Less; Any olber expenae (whether in (he nature of revenue or capital expenditure) or amy lsbiity or other payouls required {32900 (40.25) {105.50)

at the Brookficld REIT lovel, and nol captured herein,
Less; Any pmyment of fees, including but not limited to;

« Trustee fees i 295 (3.16)
« REIT Management Fees (22.98) (22.95) (45.93)
= Vaduer feex (1.89) (0.98) ©.71)
* Logal and professional foes (247 (10.25) (14.44)
+ Trademark license fees - - -

* Secondment fees - - -
Add; Cash flow received from Assel SPV and imvestment entity, if any ineluding to the exient not coversd n'bnve
= repayment of the debit in case of invesiments by way of debt i - - -

= proceeds from buy-backs/ copital reduction - - -
Addf (Less): Debt drawdown/ (payment) of interest and repayment on exiernal debt (including mny loans, bends, debentures - - -

ar ather form of debt funding) af the Brookdicld REIT level

Less: Income tmx and other tnxes (if applicable) ai the Condensed REIT level (net of ey tax refunds), (3.68) (3.83) .75
Addi{Less): Cash inflows and outflows in relation o nay resl estato propertios held directly by the Brookficid REIT, to the 5 . .
exient not covered above (if any),

u): Other adjustments, including but not Emited to net chariges in securi sity, working capital, ete. 2242 68.83 100.20
_NDCF_ 143448 194727 5,316.52

“The dilference between SFV level NDCF and REIT level NOCF ia primarily on sccount of utilization of opening Gash et tho SPV lovel.

of the Mlmsﬂ'lnlhTmll in their mesting beld on 11 February 2022, kove declared distrbution to Unitholders of Re. 5.00 per unit which aggregates 1o Rs. 1,514.01 million for the quarter ended 31
December 2011, The ibuticns of Re. 5,00 per ises Re, 3.28 per unit in the form of interest poyment on shareholder loan, R, 0.10 per unit in the form of dividend, Rs. 1.59 per unit in the form of repayment of 5PV debt
and the balance Re, 0.03 per unit in the form of inierest on fixed depeosit.

The Baard of Disectors of the Mansger to the Trust, in their meeting held on 09 November 2021, had approved distribation to Unithaldare of Re. 6.00 per unit which aggregaies to R, 1,616,581 million for the quarter ended 30
September 201 |, The distribations of Re, 6,00 per unit eemprises Ra, 3,88 per unil in the form of interest payment on shareholder loan, Rs, 0.09 per unit in the form of dividend, Rs, 2.00 per unil in the form of repayment of SPV debi
and the balance Rs. 0.03 per unit in the form of interest on fixed deposit.

The Bonrd of Directors of the Mannger to the Tram, in their meeting held on 10 August 2021, bad npproved distribution to Undthalders of Rs. 6.00 per unit which aggregated to Rs. 1,816.81 million for the quarter ended 30 Juna
2021, The distributions of Ra. 6,00 per unit comprised of Ra, 4.57 per unit in the form of interest payment on sharchalder loan and CCD's, Rs. 0.45 per unit in the form of dividend, Ra. 0.98 per unit in the form of repayment of SPV
deht and the halanca Rs 0.003 per unit in the farm of interest on fixed deposit.

Statemment of Net Distributable cash flows has not been disclored for all the comparative periods 2xcept for quanter ending 30 Seplember 2021, since the first distribution of the REIT as staled in Final Offer Document was made upan
campletion of the First full quarter ie. quarter ended 30 June 2021 afler the Lsting of the Units on the Stock Exchanges,

Significen! sccounting policies {refer nols 2}

The sccompanying notes from | 1o 20 form an imegral pan of these Condensed Standelone Financial Statements.

As per our report of even dote siiached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS For and an behall of the Board af Directors of
Chartarod Accountants Brookprop Manngement Services Private Limited
Firm Registration No.; 015125N (ax Manager ta the Brookfield India REIT)
gob (T EC 5, wt
Annnd Subramaninn Ankur Gepta Alok Aggarwal
FPartner Director Chief executive officer
Membership No: 110815 DIM Mo, 0BEETSTO DIN No, 00049954
Plase: Bengalura Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date; 11 Fobruary 2022 Date: 11 February 2022 Date: 11 Februnry 2022

g‘%"_'}_“

Sunjecy Kumer Sharmn
Chief financin] officer
DIN No. 00211963
Flace: Mumbai

Date: 11 February 2022



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust

Coni A Riand

" ial Stat, 1

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Trust Information

Brookprop Menagement Services Private Limited (the ‘Settlor’) has set up the Brookfield India Real Estate Trust (Brookfield India REIT/Trust) on |7 July 2020 25 an irrevocable trust,

pursuant to the Trust Deed, under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and the Trust has been registered with SEBI as a Real Estate
i Board of India (Real Estate I

under Regulai

6 of the 5

and Bxck

Trusts) Reg

Trust on 14 Septemt

Services Limited (the ‘Trustee’) and the Manager for Brookfield India Real Estate Trust is Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the *Manager').

The objectives of Brookfield India REIT is to undertake

fance with the p

Brookiield India REIT is to own and invest in rent or income generating real estate and related assets in India with the oby

Unithelders.

Brookfield India REIT

d the foll

niote 25) on 08 February 2021, In exchange for these equity i

Brookfield India BEIT went public as per its plan for Initial Public Offer of Units after ob

the abatie slisrehadd

of the SEBI REIT Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of
i distributions to

of prod stable and inabl

successful applicants on 08 February 2021 and |1 February 2021

All these Units were subsequently listed on the

; ired
g the req PP

“The brief activities and shareholding pattern of the SPVs are provided below:

Name of SPY

Shantiniketan
Properties Frivate
Limited ('SPPL
Noida')

Candor Kolkata
One Hi-Tech
Structures Private
Limited ('Candor
Kolkata')

Cander India Office
Parks Private
Limited ('CIOF)

Festus Properties
Private Limited
(‘Festus)

Activities

Developing and leasing of commercial real
estate property in India, primarily in
IT/ITeS sector in Sector 62, Noida, Uttar
Pradesh.

Developing and lensing of commercial real
estate property in India, primarily in
IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in
New Town, Rajarhat, Kolkata and Sector
21, Dundahera Gurugram

Providing manngement related service
luding facilities service and
property mansgement services.

Developing and leasing of commercial real
estate property in India, primarily in
IT/ITeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in
Powai, Mumbai.

BSREP India Office Holdings Pre. Ltd.: 100%
BSREP Moon CI LP.: 0.00% (10 Shares)

BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd.: 99.97%
BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd.: 0.03%

BSREP Moon C1 L.P.; 99.99%
BSREP Moon C2 L.P. : 0.01%

Kairos Property Managers Pvt. Ltd.:10.76%
BSREF II India Office Holdings II Pte. Ltd.:89.24%

ing Special Purpose Vehicles ('SPVs') by acquiring all the equity interest held by the Sponsor and certain members of Sponsor Group (refer
have been allotted 164,615,801 Units of Brookfield India REIT valued at Rs, 275/- each.

Is from the relevant autharities. The Units were allotted to the

| Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) on 16 February 2021
Shareholding u br Shareholding from 08 February 2021 {in.
nta gerneguget

Brookfield India REIT ; 100%
Condor Indin Office Parks Private Limited : 0.00%
(1 shares) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT)

Brockfield India REIT : 100%
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited . 0.00%
(1 shares) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT)

Brookficld India REIT ; 100%

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private
Lamited : 0.00% (1 shares) (as nominee of
Brookfield India REIT)

Brookfield India REIT : 100%
Candor India Office Parks Private Limited ; 0.00%
(1 shares) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT)

2020
2014, The Trustee to Brookfield India Real Estate Trust is Axis Trustee
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2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation of Condensed Standalone financial statements

The Interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements (Condensed Standalone Financial Statements)
of Brookfield India REIT comprises the Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2021;
the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income) and
the Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the quarter and nine months ended 31 December
2021, the Condensed Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholders” Equity for the nine months
ended 31 December 2021, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow for the quarter and nine months
ended 31 December 2021 and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information and other additional financial disclosures as required under the SEBI (Real Estate
Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014. The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements were
authorized for issue in accordance with resolutions passed by the Board of Directors of the Manager on
behalf of the Brookfield India REIT on 11 February 2022. The Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with the SEBI circular number
CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 (“REIT Regulations”); Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (‘Ind AS’) to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations
(refer note 10(a)(i) on presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” instead of compound instruments
under Ind AS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation), read with relevant rules issued thereunder and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Accordingly, these interim Condensed Standalone Financial Statements do not include all the
information required for a complete set of financial statements. These interim Condensed Standalone
Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the standalone financial statements and related
notes included in the Trust’s standalone financial statements under IND AS for the period ended 31
March 2021. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a
change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Millions, except
when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Significant accounting policies
a) Functional and presentation currency
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is
Brookfield India REIT’s functional currency and the currency of the primary economic
environment in which Brookfield India REIT operates. All financial information presented in Indian
rupees has been rounded off to nearest million except unit and per unit data.
b) Basis of measurement
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for certain financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as

explained in the accounting policies below.

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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¢) Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of Condensed Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS), to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT
regulations, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements is included in the following notes:

(6] Presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” in accordance with the REIT Regulations instead
of compound instrument (Note 10)

(ii) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from Covid-19 (Note 23)

(iii)  Impairment of investments and loans in subsidiaries

(iv) Fair valuation and disclosures
SEBI Circulars issued under the REIT Regulations require disclosures relating to net assets
at fair value and total returns at fair value.

d) Current versus non-current classification

Brookfield India REIT presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet
based on current/ non-current classification:

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the normal operating
cycle.

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Brookfield India REIT classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle of Brookfield India REIT;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Brookfield India REIT does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.
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Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/ liabilities
respectively. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

e) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, Brookfield India REIT takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability and how market participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Inputs to fair value measurement techniques are disaggregated into three hierarchical levels, which
are directly based on the degree to which inputs to fair value measurement techniques are
observable by market participants:

e Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date.

e Level 2: Inputs (other than quoted prices included in Level 1) are either directly or indirectly
observable for the asset or liability through correlation with market data at the measurement
date and for the duration of the asset’s or liability’s anticipated life.

e Level 3: Inputs are unobservable and reflect management’s best estimate of what market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Consideration
is given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and the risk inherent in the inputs in
determining the estimate.

Fair value measurements are adopted by Brookfield India REIT to calculate the carrying amounts
of various assets and liabilities.

f) Impairment of non-financial assets

Brookfield India REIT assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that a non-
financial asset other than deferred tax assets may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Brookfield India REIT estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

An impairment loss is recognized in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss if the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of
the CGU on a pro rata basis. A CGU is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash
flows that are largely independent from other assets and groups.

Impairment losses are recognized in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, unless
it reverses previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity.

Goodwill (if any) arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or group of CGUs that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. In estimating value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to




Broolkfield India Real Estate Trust
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

Notes to the Condensed Standalone financial statements

value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that
cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGU.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect
of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets, such a reversal is made only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

g) Investment in SPV’s

The Trust has elected to recognize its investments in SPVs at cost in accordance with the option
available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements.’

The details of such investment are given in note 3.

Assets representing investments in SPV's are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that carrying amount may not be recoverable, such circumstances include,
though are not limited to, significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material
adverse changes in the economic environment.

h) Foreign currency transactions

Items included in the financial statements of the Brookfield India REIT are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Brookfield India REIT operates (“the
functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the
Brookfield India REIT functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains or losses resulting from the seftlement of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at reporting period end exchange
rates are generally recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

i) Errors, estimates and change in accounting policy

The Brookfield India REIT revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change
in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and reliable information to the users of the
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements. Changes in accounting policies are applied
retrospectively, wherever applicable.

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised
assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively in the period(s) of change. Discovery
of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets,
liabilities and equity of the earliest prior period in which the error is discovered. The opening
balances of the earliest period presented are also restated.
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j) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial Assets - Recognition

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value (except for trade receivables which are
initially measured at transaction price) plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classification and subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

* Debt instruments at amortized cost

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate (CIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange
gain or loss is recognized in statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative
gains or losses previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit
and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using
the EIR method.

* Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Brookfield India REIT may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise
meets amartized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if




Brookfield India Real Estate Trust
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

Notes to the Condensed Standalone financial statements

doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). The Brookfield India REIT has not designated any debt instrument as at
FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in Statement of profit or loss.

* Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Brookfield
India REIT may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value. The Brookfield India REIT makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Brookfield India REIT decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment.
However, the Brookfield India REIT may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Financial Assets - Derecognition

A [inancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial assct or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized (i.e., removed from the Brookfield India REIT balance sheet)
when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Brookfield India REIT has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Brookfield India REIT has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Brookfield India REIT has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

Brookfield India REIT recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for
the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade
receivables with no significant financing component and lease receivables is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable
and lease receivables, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are
measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at the reporting date, is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.
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(iv) Financial liabilities — Recognition and Subsequent measurement

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less any attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, these are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate (‘'EIR") method or at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities include trade and other payables, Loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
* Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
Statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Brookfield India REIT that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through Statement of profit or
loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109
are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable (o changes in
own credit risk are recognized in OCI These gains or losses are not subsequently transferred to
statement of profit and loss. However, the Brookfield India REIT may transfer the cumulative gains
or losses within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in Statement
of profit and loss. The Brookfield India REIT has not designated any financial liability as at fair
value through profit or loss.

« Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not held for trading, or designated as at FVTPL, are measured
subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period,
to the amortized cost of a financial liability.

(v) Financial liabilities - Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is freated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
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including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in the Statement of
profit and loss as other gains/(losses).

(vi) Income/loss recognition
* Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. While
calculating the effective interest rate, the Brookfield India REIT estimates the expected cash flows
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

k) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Brookfield India REIT assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Brookfield India REIT assesses
whether:

e the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly. or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not
identified;

e the Brookfield India REIT has the right to obrain substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

o the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Brookfield India REIT
has this right when it has the decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how and
for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what
purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct the
use of the asset if either:

o the Brookfield India REIT has the right to operate the asset; or
o the Brookfield India REIT designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for
what purpose it will be used.

As a lessee

The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease
incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as
those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.
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The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Brookfield India REIT incremental borrowing rate. Generally,
the Brookfield India REIT uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

o fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

¢ amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

s the exercise price under a purchase option that the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain
to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Brookfield India REIT is
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease
unless the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there
is a change in the Brookfield India REIT’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or if the Brookfield India REIT changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Brookfield India REIT presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities (current and non-current) in the
statement of financial position.

The Brookfield India REIT has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short-term leases of machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. The Brookfield India REIT recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a Lessor

The Brookfield India REIT enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to its investment
properties.

Leases for which the Brookfield India REIT is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Brookfield India REIT is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the
sub-lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at the amount of the
Brookfield India REIT’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Brookfield India REIT’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease components, the Brookfield India REIT applies
Ind AS 115 to allocate the consideration under the contract to each component.

I) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. This inter alia
involves discounting of the consideration due to the present value if payment extends beyond
normal credit terms.

Revenue is recognised when recovery of the consideration is probable and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably.

Recognition of dividend income, interest income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the Brookfield India REIT’s
right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. In calculating interest income, the
cffective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the assct (when the asset is not
credit impaired). However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation
of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

m) Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in Statement of profit and
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive
income, in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

(i) Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount
of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.
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(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax
credits, Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss
at the time of the transaction;

- Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Brookfield India REIT is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- Taxable temporary differences arising on initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong
evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent
losses, Brookfield India REIT recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient
taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit
will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets—
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/reduced to the
extent that it is probable/no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.
Further, no deferred tax asset/liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary differences that
reverse within tax holiday period.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Brookfield India REIT expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

n) Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Brookfield India REIT has a present obligation as a result of
past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Brookfield India REIT or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it
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cannot be measured reliably. The Brookfield India REIT does not recognize a contingent liability
but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations
under the contract.

0) Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

Identification of segments:

In accordance with Ind AS 108- Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present
segment information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (‘CODM’) to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. An
operating segment is a component of the Brookfield India REIT that engages in business activities
from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to
transactions with any of the Brookfield India REIT’s other components.

Based on an analysis of Brookfield India REIT’s structure and powers conferred to the Manager to
Brookfield India REIT, the Governing Board of the Manager (Brookprop Management Services
Private Limited) has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM'), since they

are empowered for all major decisions w.r.t. the management, administration, investment,
disinveslinenl, ele.

As the Brookfield India REIT is primarily engaged in the business of developing and maintaining
commercial real estate properties in India, CODM reviews the entire business as a single operating
segment and accordingly disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments” in respect
of reportable segments are not applicable.

p) Subsequent events

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are prepared after reflecting adjusting and non-
adjusting events that occur after the reporting period but before the Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements are authorized for issue,

q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money market
deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

r) Earnings per unit

Basic earnings per unit is calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) for the period attributable to

unit holders of the Brookfield India REIT by the weighted average number of units outstanding
during the period.
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per unit, the profit or loss for the period attributable
to unit holders of the Brookfield India REIT and the weighted average number of units outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential units.

Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they
have been issued at a later date. In computing diluted earnings per unit, only potential units that are
dilutive and which either reduces earnings per unit or increase loss per units are included.

s) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Condensed
Standalone Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Brookfield India REIT currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

t) Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Brookfield India REIT are segregated. For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flow, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits.

u) Cash distribution to Unitholders

The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a liability o make cash distributions o Unitholders when
the distribution is authorized and a legal obligation has been created. As per the REIT Regulations,
a distribution is authorized when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Manager. A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity. (Refer note 10(a)(i)).
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As at As at
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
3 Non current financial assets - Investments

Trade, unquated, in Subsidinries (at cost) (refer note below)

97,526 (31 March 2021: 59,545) Equity shares of Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 24,761,39 14,661.39

143,865,096 (31 March 2021: 143,865,096) Equity shares of Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 11,407,83 11,407.83

464,641,121 (31 March 2021: 464,641,121) Equity shares of Fastus Properties Private Lumited of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up B,655.46 B,655,46

9,995 (31 March 2021: 9,999) Equity shares of Candor India Office Parks Private Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up 230.20 220,20
45,044,838 34,944.88

I in 12% Comp ity Ci ible Deb (D - 10, 100,00
45,044.88 45,044.88

The Trust has issued 164,619,801 Units as consideration to scquire these investments wheren the tradable REIT Units hove been valued of Rs, 275 each, aggregsiing smownting to Rs.
45,270.44 million.

*Issued by Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited.

Note;
Details of % shareholding in the subsidiaries, held by Trust is as under:

ar As at Asat

Dol Sty 31 December 2021 | 31 March 2021
- Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 100% 100%
- Festus Properties Private Limited 100% 100%
- Shantmiketan Properiies Private Limited " 100% 100%,
- Candor India Office Parks Private Limited 100% 100%
As at As at

31 December 2021 31 March 2021

4 Moo current financlal nesets - Loons
(Unsecured and considered good)
Loan to Subsidiaries - refer nole 25 34,902.00 36,100.00

34,902.00 36,100.00

Terms for Loan to Subsidiaries

Security: Unsecured

Interest: 12.50% per annum (compounded quarierly)

Repayment:

{n) Bullet repayment on the dute falling al the end of 15 (fifteen) years fom the first disbursement date,

(b) Eazly repayment option (whally ar partially) is available 1o the borrower (SFVs).

() The interest on these loan o subsidiaries is receivable on the last dote of every financial quarter, Notwithstanding erything te the contrary, the interest with respect to the loans under the
fucility, shall accrue and become due and receivable only on availability of free cash Jow on the interes! puyment date. In the event on any Interest payment date, the fes cash flows are lower
then the calculated interest (including any shortfall of pest interest perods), the shortfll between the free cash Dows and the colewlued interest shall be sccunulned and become due and
receivable from and 10 the extent of free cash Bows available an the subsequent interest payment dates.

As at As at
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
5 Non-current tax sssets {net)
Advance income las 15.89 16.92

15.89 16.92

Asat As at
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
6 Other non-current assets
(Unsecured and considered good)
Security deposit 30,00 30.00

30.00 30.00

Az at Az at
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
7 Current financisl assets - Cash and cash equivaleats
Balance with banks :

= m current account 30.05 18542

- Im escrow account® B9.77 1,43287

= In deposit aceount (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 1,667.00 -
1,786.82 1,618.29

* Represents the balance of Rs. 89,77 milion as ot 31 December 2021 (31 March 2021 : Rs, 1,432.87 million) from proceeds of mitial public offer of Brookfeld India REIT Units (Total
proceeds s, 38,000.00 million). These amounts are held in the eserow nccount and con be withdrown for partinl or full pre-poyment or scheduled repayment of the existing indebtedness of
SPVs, general purposes and issue expenses (as specified in the Brookfield India REIT's final offer document}),
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As at Asat
31 December 2021 31 March 2021

Current financial assets - Other
{Unsecured and considered good)
To parties other than related parties
Interest accrued bt not due on fixed deposits with banks 0.49 &
T'o related parties (refer note 25)
Interest ncerued bul not due on Investment in Debentures - JBT.02
Interest accrued bt not due on Loan to Subsidinries 541,81 543.97

54230 931.05

As at As at
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
Other current assels
(Unsecured and considered good)
Prepaid expenses® .66 -
Other Advances {13 -3 -
.78 -

* For related perties balance, refer note 25
Unit Capital
Particulars Mo. of Units Amuount
As at 17 July 2020 - -
Units issued during the period
- pursuant to the initial public ofTer, issued, subscribed and fully paid-up in cosh (refer note i below) 138,181,800 38,000.00
- in exchange for equity interest in SPVs (refer note iii below) 127,892,403 35,170.41
= in exchange for 12% C lsorily C: il L in Candor Kolkota 36,727,398 10,100.03
Less: Issue expenses (refer note below) - (1.495.66)
Clozing balance ns at 31 March 2021 302,801,601 81,774.78
As at 01 April 2021 302,501,601 81,774.78
Less: Disiribution to Unithelders for the quarter ended 30 June 2021 = {297.05)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for 1he quarter ended 30 September 2021 = (605.60)
Add: Reversal of issue expenses no longer payable (refer note below) = 516
Closing balance as at 31 December 2021 302,801,601 80,877.25

Note: Issue expenses pertaining to the Initial Public Ofering (1PO) and listing of the Units on (he Notional Stock Exchange and Bomboy Stock Exchonge bove been reduced from the
Unitholders capital as at 31 December 2021 and 31 March 2021 in aeeordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments; Presentasion.

(a) Terms/ rghta to Units and thereol

(i) Tha Trust has onky ons cle of Linits. Bach Lnit repragsnte an imdivided henaficial interast in the Trost Farh halder af [nit b sntitled tn one unie per init The Tinithalders haun the rght
to receive at Jeast 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least once in every six months in each finoncial year in accordance with the REIT Regulations, The Board of
Directors of the Invesimen! Manager approves dividend distributions, The distribution will be in proportion ta the number of Units held by the Unitholders, The Trust declares and pays
dividends in Indian Rupees.

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Brookfeld India REIT is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the Net Distributalde Cash Flows of Brookiield India RETT
for each financiol veor. Accordingly. a portion of the Unit Capital contams a 1 obligetion: of the Brookfield India REIT 1o pay to its Unitholders cash distributions. Hence, the Unit
Capital is o eompound financial instrument which contain both equity and linbility components in sccordance with nd AS 32 - Finuncial 1 : P fon. However, in with
SEBI Circulars {No. CIR/IMI/DF/146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 and No. CIRIMD/DF/141/2016 dated 26 December 2016) issued under the REIT Regulations, the Unil Capital has
been presented as "Equity” in erder 1o comply with the requirements of Section H of Annexure A to the SEBI Circuler deted 26 December 2016 dealing with the minimum presentation and
disclosure requirements for key financial sistements. Consistent with Unit Capital being classified as equity, the disint te Unithelders is also p d in § of Changes in
Unithelders' Equity when the distnbutions are spproved by the Doard of Direeters of Investment Mannager,

{1} Initin] Public Ofering of 138,181,800 Units for cash at price of Rs. 275 per Unit aggregating 1o Rs. 38,000,00 million,

(i) Brookfeld Indin REIT acquired the SPVs by acquirng all the equity imterest held by cur Sponsor and certain members of our Sponsor Group. The acquisition of equity interast in the
SPV's has been done by issue of 127,892,403 Units of Rs. 275 each as per the table below,

MName of SPV Number of Units allotted for acquiring all the equity interest held in
the SPVs
Sponsor SF.mr:.m:}mMi“ Total
Candor Kaolkatn 54,117,888 16,364 54,134,352
Featus = 31,474,412 31,474,412
SPPL Noida - 41,483,012 41,483,012
CIOF - 800,727 800,727
Total oumber of Units issued 54,117,888 73,774,515 117,892,403
b) Unitholders holding more than S percent Units in the Trust

Name of Unitholders No. of Units % of holdings
BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte. Ltd. 54,117,888 17.87%
BSREP India Office Holdings Pre Ltd. 41,499,373 13.71%
BEREF India Office Holdings 111 Pre Lid 36,727,358 12.13%
BSREP I Indin Office Holdmngs 11 Pte. Ltd. 28,086,775 9.28%

() The Trust hos not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of benus units nor has it bought back nay class of units from the date of registration till the balance sheet date. Further, the Trust
has not issued any units for consideration other than cash fom the date of registration till the balance sheet date, except as disclosed sbave,
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Other Eduity* As st A at
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
Reserves and Surplus
Retuined camings 1,396.66 626,23

1,396.66 626.23

*Refer Condersed Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity for detaled movement in other equity balances.

Retained earnings
The eumulstive gain of loss ariging from the aperations which is retained end is recognized and sccumulsted under the heading of retained eamings. At the end of the period, the profit(ioss)
fler tax is transferred from the Stutement of Profit and Loss to the releined camings account.

Asal As at
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
Current Minancial linbilities - Trade poynbles

Total outstanding dues lo micro enterprises and small enferprises - -
Total outstanding dues 1o ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprizes® 22,08 21.79

2208 L7

*For balance payable 10 reloted parties, refer note 25

Asat As at
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
Current « Other financial linbilities

Other poyables* 19.73 1,248.33

19.73 1,248.33

*Fer balance payable fo related parties, refer note 25

As al Ax al
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
Other current linbilities

Statutory dues payshle B.91 70.01

881 T0.01
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Particulars For the quarter For the quarier Fur the quarter For the sioe months  From 17 July 2020 From 17 July 2020
eaded en ended ended tn o
31 December 3021 30 September 2021 31 December 2020 3] December 2021 31 December 2020 31 March 2021
Interest Income
Interest Incame®
- oni Debentures (Representing FYTPL gain on 12% Compulsanily
Convertible Debentures) - - - - " 17843
~ on Loany 1o subsidiaries 1,125.79 1,14521 - 3,412.51 - 54397
Interes insome on fixed deposits with banlks .40 .62 - 20.55 - -
1,135.19 1,154.43 = 3433.06 - 72140
* Refer note 23
Other expenses
Marketing and advertisement expenses 4.24 483 1386 1228 1586 Ja.00
Daonation - - - 20.00 - -
Miszellaneous expenses 159 0.0l . 496 003 0.23
643 4.86 15.86 3124 15.89 56.23
Tax expense
Current tax 4,00 412 - B.78 - =
Deferred lax - - - ] . -
4.01 4.12 - 578 - -

Brookfield Indin REIT is & business trust registered under SEBI REIT Regulations, 2014, Hence, the interest and dividend received or receiveble by Brookfield India RETT [rom the 5PV is excmnpt from tax under scetion
1D{23FC) of the Inzome Tax Act, 1961 (Act). Further, any expenditure incurred in relation 10 earning the exempl income is pot tax deductible i view of the provisions of section 14A of the Act

The inceme af Brookficld India REIT, other than exempl incame joned above, ir le {0 tax at the

marginal rates in force (far the quarter and nine manths ended 31 December 2021: 42.744%; for the

period cnded 31 March 2021: 42.744%), except for the income chagenble 10 tax on transfer of shorl term capital nssets under section 111A of the Act and long term cepital assels uader section 112 of the Act.
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18 Contingent linbilities
There are no contingent liabilities s at 31 December 2021 and 31 March 2021.
19 Capital commitments

There are no capital i agat 31 D ber 2021 and 31 March 2021,

20 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management
i) Financial instruments by category and fair value

The below table summarrzes the jud and esty made in d ining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognized and measured at fair value and (b) measured
&l amortized cost end for which fair values are disclosed in the fi gl The Brookfield India REIT has classified its financial instruments, which are measured at fair value, into
threa levels in accordanee with Ind AS,

Carrying value Fair value
As at Asat As at As st
31 December 2021 31 March 2021 31 December 2021 31 March 2021

At Amortized Cost

Financial nssets

Cash and cash equivalents # 1,786.82 1,618.29 1,786.82 1,618.29
Loans * 34,902.00 16,100.00 37,811.90 36,100.00
Other fi inl psseis i 542.30 531,05 542,30 931.05
At FVYTPL

Aszols

12% Compulsarily Convertible Det (CCD)** - 10,100,00 = 10,100.00
Total financial assets 37.231.12 48,749.34 40,141.02 48,749.34
At Amortized Cost
Financial liabilities

Trade Eaxl'blea # 22.08 21.79 22.08 21.79
Other fi ial liabilities # 19.73 1,24833 19.73 1,248.33
Total financial liabilities 41.81 1,270.12 41.81 1,270.12|

# fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities which are recognized at amortized cost has been disclosed to be same as carrying velue as the carrying value approximately equals 1o
their fair vaiue.

* Fair value of loan which are recognized at ized cost, has been calculated at the present value of the future cash flows discounted at the current barrowing rate,
** Fair value of i in 12% Comp ily C ible Det {CCDs) are classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unchservable inputs. On 1 April
2021, these deb have been | into equity shares of Candor Kolkata at conversion price which is equal to the fair market value of the equity shares of K1 at the time of

conversion in accardance with the terms of these CCDs, Accordingly, the fair value of these CCDs as at 31 March 2021 13 same as the face value of CCDs (Rs. 10,100.00 million).

ii) Measurement of fair values

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments messured using quoted prices for instance listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price.

Level 2 The fair value of financial instrumemnts that are not waded in an active market (for example, waded bonds, over-the counter derivatves) is derermined using valuation wechniques which
maximize the use of observable market data and rely as litlle es possible on entity-specific estimates, If all significant inputs required to fair value en instrument are observable, the instrument
is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs ia not based on obaervable market data, the instrument is included in level 3,

There have been no valuation under Level | and Level 2, There has been no tranafers into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for the quarter/period ended 31 December 2021 and 31
March 2021

The Brookfield Indin REIT's pelicy is to i fers into and out of fair value hierarchy levels s st the end of the reporting period.
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21 Segment reporting

The Trust does not have any Operati 25 at 31 I ber 2021 and 31 March 2021, hence disclogure under Ind AS 108, Operating segments has not been provided in the Condensed
Standalone financial

22 Earnings Per Unit (EPU)

Basic EPU amounts are :nlcnlmed I:y dividing the profit for the quarter / period atiributable to Unitholders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the quarter / period, Diluted
EPL are calculated by d g the profit attributable to Unitholders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of units that

would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital. The Units of the Trust were allotted on 08 February 2021 and | 1 February 2021

For the quarter For the quarter For the quarter For the nine From 17 July 2020 From 17 July 2020
Particulars ended ended ended maonths ended to to
31 December 2021 30 September 2021 31 December 2020 31 December 2021 31 December 2020 31 March 2021

Profit / (Loss) after tax for calculating basic and diluted EPU 1,123.10 1,140.49 (16.65) 3,501.40 (18.85) 62623
Weighted average number of Units (Nos.) 302,801,60] 302,801,601 Not Applicable 302,801,601 Mot Applicable 59,423,015
Earnings Per Unit

-Basic (Rupees/unit) LR .77 Not Applicable 11,56 Not Applicable 10.54

-Diluted (Rupees/unit)* 171 kN Not Applicabl 11.56 Not Applicabl 10.54

* The Trust does not have any outstanding dilutive units

23 Uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19:

The COVID-19 pandemic has continued to cause disruption to business activities as well as disrupted travel and ad ly i d local, regional, national and i ional ic conditions,
Brookfield India REIT has considered possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the narrymg of I in Subsidiaries. In developing assumptions
relating to possible future uncertainties in the Indian el:m'mmlc m‘idllmm because of this pandemic; Brookfield India REIT, as at the date of approval of these Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements, has used internal and extemal sources of 1 i forecast and other information from market sourees on the expected ﬁ.rture performance of Brookfield India REIT.
Baszed on this analysis, anid’n:]:l India REIT has concluded that there i3 no impairment to the carrying amount of L n idiaries as on the reperting date.

The impact of COVID-19 on Broakfield India REIT Cond d Standalone Financial St may differ from thot estimated as at the date of app Dflhese Cond d Standalone Financial
Statements,

24 Investment Management fee

REIT Management Fees
Pursuant to the Investment M Agr dated 17 h.lly 2020, Investment Manager 15 entitied to tees (@ 1% of NDUF, exclusive of apphcable taxes (also reter note 27). The fees has been
determined for undertaking management of Ihe REIT and its The said M fees for the quarter and nine months ended 31 December 2021 amounts to Rs. 16,96 million and Rs.

62,87 million respectively,
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Related Party Disclosures

Related parties to Brookfield India REIT as at 31 December 2021

BSREP India Office Haldings V Pte Lid- Sponsor
Broakprop Mansgement Services Private Limited - Investment Menager
Axis Trustee Services Limited—Trustee

The Ultimate parent entity and sponsor groups, with whom the group has related party transactions during the period, consist of the below entities:
BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte Lid- Sponsor

3) BSREP [ India Office Holdings T1 Pte, Ltd, (BSREP II India)

b) Brookfield Asset Management Inc, (BAM) , ultimate parent entity and controlling pany

) Kairos Property Managers Private Limited (Kairas)

d) BSREP Moon C1 L.P

¢) BSREF Moon C2ZL.P

f) BSREP India Office Holdings Il Pte Ltd, (BSREP India Office III)

) BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd, (BSREP India Holdings)

Directors & Key p 1 of the I M. (Brookprop Services Private Limited)

Directors Key personnel

Akila Krishnakumar (Independent Director) Alok Apgarwal - Managing director and chief executive officer — India office business

Shailesh Vishnubhai Haribhakti (Independent Director) Sanjeev Kumar Sharma - E ive vice president and chief fi ial efficer — India office business

Anuj Ranjan (Mon-Executive Director)
Ankur Gupta (Mon-Executive Director)

Subsidiary (SPVs) (w.e.l. 08 February 2021)

Cendor Kolkats One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited
Festus Properties Private Limited

Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited

Candor India Office Parks Private Limited
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Brookfield India Real Estate Trust

Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Cond i Standalone financial stat ts

26 Details of utilisation of proceeds of [PO are as follows:

Objects of the issue as per the prospectus Proposed utilisation Actual utilisation upto | Unuotfilised amount as at
31 December 2021 31 December 2021

Partial or full pre-payment or scheduled re of the existing 35,750.00 35,750.00 -

indebtedness of our Asset SPYs

General purposes (refer note below) 350.00 583.83 -

Issue expenses (refer note below) 1,500.00 1,572.53 93.64

Total 38,000.00| 37,906.36 93.64

Note: Amount of Rs. 233,83 million has been used for general corporate purposes from the proposed utilization towards issue expenses.

2

-

Distribution Policy

In terms of the Distribution policy and REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCFs of our Asset SPVs are required to be distributed to Brookfield
REIT, in proportion of its sharcholding in our Asset SPVs, subject to applicable provisions of the Companies Act. The cash flows receivable by Brookfield
REIT may be in the form of dividends, interest income, principal loan repayment, proceeds of any capital reduction or buyback from our Asset SPVs/ CIOP,
sale proceeds out of disposal of investments of any or assets directly/ indirectly held by Brookfield REIT or as specifically penmitted under the Trust Deed
or in such other form as may be permissible under the applicable laws,

At least 90% of the NDCFs of Brookfield REIT (“REIT Distributions™) shall be declared and made once every quarter of a Financial Year by our Manager.
The first distribution shall be made upon completion of the first full quarter after the listing of our Units on the Stock Exchanges. Further, in accordance
with the REIT Repulations, REIT Distributions shall be made no later than 15 days from the date of such declarations. The REIT Distributions, when made,
shall be made in Indian Rupees.

‘The NDCFs shall be calculated in accordance with the REIT Regulations and any circular, notification or guidelines issued th ler including the SEBI
Guidelines,

28 On 1 April 2021, 12% Compulsorily C i Deb issued by Candor Kolkata and held by Brookfield India REIT (45,533 numbers of 12%
Compulsorily Convertible Det have been d into 37,981 number of equity shares each of Rs.10 at a premium of Rs, 26591243,

29 Subsequent events

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the unitholders at their meeting held on 14 January 2022, approved the acquisition of 100% of equity share capital and
compulsorily convertible debentures (CCDs) of Seaview Developers Private Limited by Brookfield India REIT from BSREP India Office Holdings IV Pre.
Ltd, and BSREP India Office Holdings Pte, Ltd. (collectively the “Sellers”) for an acquisition price, amounting to Rs. 39,663.02 million (subject to
adjustments in relation to net debt, working capital and other adjustments as agreed among the parties amounting to Rs. 21,959.02 million). The acquisition
price was based on the average of the valuations from two independent valuers, as per the REIT regulations and in accordance with the option agrecment
entered into between Seaview Developers Private Limited and its shareholders with Brookfield India REIT and Brookprop Management Services Private
Limited as manager of Brookfield India REIT. The acquisition price post adjustments was paid through a combination of cash (Rs. 13,153.83 million) and
units of the Brookfield India REIT (Rs. 4,550.17 million). The transaction was completed by payment of purchase consideration in cash to Sellers and issue
of units to BSREP India Office Holdings IV Pte. Ltd. and transferring of equity share capital and CCDs from Sellers to Brookfield India REIT on 24
January 2022,

30 "0.00" Represcnts value less than Rs. 0,01 million,
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

WW 675@%?“““-,-0

Ankur Gupta Alok Aggarwal
Director Chief executive officer
DIN No. 08687570 DIN Ne. 00009964
Place; Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 11 February 2022 Date: 11 February 2022

i

Sanjeev Kumar Sharma
Chief financial officer
DIN Neo. 00211963
Place; Mumbai

Date: 11 February 2022
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Deloitte

k- & s II Chartered Ac;oyntants
Haskins ells 7tn Floor, Bulling 10, Tower ,

DLF City Phase - II,

Gurugram - 122 002,
Haryana, India

Phone: +91 124 679 2000
Fax: +91 124 679 2012

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the “"Investment Manager”)
(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Brookfield India Real Estate
Trust)

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Statements of BROOKFIELD INDIA REAL ESTATE TRUST (“the REIT”) and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2021, the unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash flow for quarter and nine months
ended December 31, 2021, the unaudited Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Unitholders’ Equity for the nine months ended December 31, 2021, and the unaudited
Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow for the quarter and nine months ended December
31, 2021 as an additional disclosure in accordance with Paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the
Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated
December 29, 2016 along with summary of the significant accounting policies and select
explanatory notes (together hereinafter referred as the “"Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Statements”).

The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, which is the responsibility of the
Investment Manager and approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager,
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular No.
CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 (“REIT Regulations”); Indian Accounting
Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” (“"Ind AS 34"), prescribed under Rule 2(1)(a) of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the
REIT Regulations. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Condensed
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review of the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements in
accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410 “Review of Interim
Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”, issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). A review of interim financial information
consists of making inquiries, primarily of Investment Manager’s personnel responsible for
financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A
review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Standards
on Auditing issued by ICAI and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we
would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

/KZ‘:?H Page 1 of 2
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Haskins & Sells

4. The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements includes the financial information
of the following entities:

Sr. No. | Name of the entities
A Parent entity
1 Brookfield India Real Estate Trust
B Subsidiaries
1 Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited
2 Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited
3 Festus Properties Private Limited
4 Candor India Office Parks Private Limited

Conclusion

5. Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements, have not been prepared in
accordance with the REIT Regulations, Ind AS 34, prescribed under Rule 2(1)(a) of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT
Regulations.

Emphasis of matter

6. We draw attention to Note 15(a)(i) which describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as
“Equity” to comply with REIT Regulations. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Reg. No. 015125N)

A;gir Yf (4

Anand Subramanian

Partner

(Membership No. 110815)
(UDIN: 22110815ABJGEY6328)

@

Oe O///

Place: Bengaluru
Date: February 11, 2022
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Brookfield India Real Estate Trust
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
{All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Cond ic Hdated Ralk Sheet

Asat As at
Particulars Note 31 December 2021 31 March 2021
(Unaudited) (Audited)

ASSETS

Non-Current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 121.62 101.17
Investment property 4 98,910.15 100,179.76
Investment property under development 4 993.11 791.74
Intangible assets 3 0.20 042
Financial assets

-Other financial assets 5 89.96 281.83
Deferred tax assets (net) 6 2,817.713 2,641.23
MNon-current tax assets (net) 7 1,633.58 1,527.81
Other non-current assets 8 543.91 55542
Total non-current assets 105,110.26 106,079.38
Current assets

Financial assets

-Trade receivables 9 199.63 204 .35
-Cash and cash equivalents 10 2,241.07 3,155.19
~Other bank balances 11 317.99 150,65
-Loans 12 - -
<Other financial assets 13 286.54 163,13
Other current assets 14 198.25 157.32
Taotal current assets 3,243.48 3,830.64
TOTAL ASSETS 108,353.74 109,910.02
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Unit Capital 15 80,877.29 81,774.78
Other equity 16 (458.88) 252.75
Total equity 80,418.41 52,027.53
LIABILITIES

Non current liabilities

Financial liabilities

-Borrowings 17 22,327.00 21,015.17
-Lease liabilities 84.39 87.12
~Other financial liabilities 18 963.77 1,412.27
Provisions 19 12.34 10.86
Other non-current liabilities 20 600.51 386.47
Total non-current liabilitics 23,988.01 22,911.89




Brookfield India Real Estate Trust
Candensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at Asat
Particulars Note 31 December 2021 31 March 2021
(Unaudited) (Audited)

Current linbilities
Financial liabilines
-Lease liabilities 10.42 10,42
~Trade payables 21

Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small 0.91 1.09

enterprises

Total outstanding dues to creditors other thun micro 413.50 444 41

enterprises and small enlerprises
-Other financial liabilities 22 3,063.60 3,9931.79
Provisions 23 4.51 4.49
Other current liabilities 24 356.92 396.01
Current tax liabilities (net) 25 97.46 120.39
Total current linbilities 3,947.32 4,970.60
Total liabilities 27,935.33 27, 49
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 108,353.74 109,910.02
Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes from | to 48 form an integral part of these Condensed

Consalidated Financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 015125N

Anand Subramanian
Partner

Membership No: 110815
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 11 February 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

o

Ankur Gupta

Director

DIN No. 08687570
Place: Mumbai

Date: 11 February 2022

_g’;q“_—‘
Sanjeev Kumar Sharma
Chief financial officer
DIN No. 00211963
Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 February 2022

Tlc “”,p

Alok Aggarwal

Chuef executive officer
DIN No. 00009964
Place: Mumbai

Date: 11 February 2022
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Brookdield ludin Real Extute Trust
Ci Cr i Finnocial
(All amounts are in Rupees Mdliors unless atherwise sinted)

Condensed Consolidsied Staicment of Cash Flows

For the quarter For the quarter For the nine months  From 17 July 202000 From 17 July 2020 10
Foetheuarier endwl et ended caded 3 nm:;r 2020 n m’zﬂn
Partieulirs 31 December 2021 i diedl Auditedi®
(Unnudtited) 3 . W N i 0w u e il
(Unsudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Cash Nows from operating sethvities ; S R e
Profit / {Loss) belome tax. 51159 63335 {16.65) LES6.19 (1885 142.43
Addfusmmenrs fiwr ¢
Depreciation and smarlization expease 49107 47113 - 141935 - 31675
Allowance for crodit loss 136 025 - L61 - a.08
Interest income o fixed deposit (16.78) {2027y - (52.76) & (321
Deferred income amartizatian (38.30) (38.12) - (114.56) = (2101}
Advances written off - - - - - 127
Credit impaired o5 in - T8 - 132
Property, plant and equipment wrifen off - - - % - 015
Floanee cost 43522 42547 = 1,279.83 - 41077
Imerest income on security deposit (4.33) (6.26) - (23.54) - 249
Operntiog cagh Nows before working capiinl changes 180,86 14T 66 {16.65) 437299 (18.65) HT5.03
Movemeal in working capitak
(L i fot otber current aad asezis (26.22) (1427 - (29.9m - 257
(Increase)/Decrease in current and non currem financial asscis (134.29) 4.7 - (1829Y) = 13176
(Decrease) Increase in current and nen curreal financiad liabilitiea 2984 @1am 16,65 [249.04) 1885 (11835
I t in other currem and nlrilit s 18200 68,26 - 34260 - (291.48)
Cash geoerated frum operatlag activities 143225 1354.65 - 415477 - BIL72
Income taxes (paid) refunds reoeived (net) £.15 (35.00) - (143.71) - 37350
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 143860 1,315.65 - 4,111.06 - 13%6.22
Cash Nows from lavesting activities :
Expenditure incumed on investment (123.19) . - (438.55) - {132.5%)
Purchise of property, plant and equipmem (3,37 (1%.45) . (33.43) . [LEE]
Fixed depagils maturedé {0.75) BL6R - 160,76 - -
Fived deposits made # 073 (53.1%) " (9174} - 347.40)
Irterest received on fixed deposiis 1359 JLE ] - Ad60 - L
Treeren received i soturity depasit 435 626 - 23.54 - 249
Ned cash waed in investing actlvivies (B) {1TH.5H) (116,28} - (31482} s {480.91)
Crah Mows from fimancing sctivities :
Finance costs paid (39B.06) (IBE.16) - {1, 168,39} L (592 &S)
Proceeds fram long-term bomowisgs E50.00 500,00 - 130000 - 21,200.00
Repayment af Lease linbilities =} (1L.02) L} {102y " -
Repayment of mow couverible bonds - - . - - (236.00)
Hepayment of lang-teom bormowings = = - 8 = (306,620.43)
Proceeds from isse of Units - - - - - 38,000.00
Expense incurred towards frdtial public alTcrings (210.91) (18.08) - (1,197.14) - (268 14}
Digtribution 1o unitbalders (1,816.60) (1R16.81) - (3,633.41) 5 -
Net cash (used in) { geaernicd from financing netivities (C) (1,785.5T) {1,734.07) - {4,710.36) - 1,462.58
Net (decrease) | bocreune in cash und cuvh equivaleats (A+B+C) (525.55) (534.70) = (514.12) - 237789
Cash and cash eqp alihe oftbe quarter / periad 2,766.62 340132 = 3,155.19 = -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired due to anel Scqubsition: - - - - - 777.30
(Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the quanter / peroad (refer note 10) 234007 2,766.61 - 1,241.07 — 315519
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Brookifichd Lodin Res) Estate Trust
Condensed Consnlidased Financisl Statements
{All amaums are in Rupees Millions unless atherwise stated)

Condensed Consuliusted Statement of Cash Flows il
For the quarter For the quarter Forthe nine months  From 17 July 2020 t0  Frem 17 July 2020 ia

For the qearter ended
Particulary 1D il ber 2021 03 Hﬂ? -~ i !nﬂ?l [ . uﬂ.d 31 December 2020 31 Muareh 2021
2021
A miesty (Unuudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Compooents of cash nnd cash cquivalents at the end of the quarter | perlad
Balances with banks
= in cwrmenl sccount 149,30 178,65 = 145.30 & Liizan
= in deposiz account 1,002.00 2437.00 = 2,002.00 - 300,00
= In escrow account 8377 150,97 = BS.77 - 1412.57

!M 1, T66.61 = uﬁ-'? - 3,155.19

¥ Represents fined depasits with original maturity of more than 3 months.

Notes:
1. The carh Naw sstement has beon prepared in necondance with "Indirect Method” ns set out In Indian Accounting Standand -7 ; "Staiement on Cash Flows".

2. The Trus! had issued Units in exchange for investments in SPVs during the previous year endod 31 March 2021, The same hag not been reflocied in Condensed Consolidaiod Stsiement of Cash Flows since these were non-cash transactions, (Refer
nate 15 eud 42).

nele2)

The accompanying nales from | 1o 48 form an inkegral pant of these Condensed Consaliduied Finnncin] Smiemenis.

* Since Indin RETT was puruan io a oarl doed dared 17 July 2020, the 1B b provided e in Condensed Statemen] of Cash Flows with eifect from said date Le. 17 July 2020 for the nine
menths ended 31 December 2020 and year ended 31 Murch 2021,

As per nir report af cven date sitached

Fer DBELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS Forand on behalf of the Boand of Directors of
Chanered Accountants Hrookprop Management Services Private Limited
Finm Registration No,: 015125 {a Manager ia the Broeklicld Indis RETT)

Tl mﬂ-/p

Andar Gupts Alok Agyarwal
Director i Chid executive officer
Membership No: 110815 DIN No. OBGETSTO DN Mo. 00005964
Place: Bengnhm Plsce; Mumbai Pince: Mumbai
Date 11 Febmuary 2022 Date: |1 February 2021 Date: 11 Febnary 2022

Sanfecy Kumar Sharms
Chief firancal officer
DIN No. 00211963
Place: Mumbai

Date: 11 Febnary 2022




Brookfield Indin Real Estate Trust
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts are in Rupees million unless otherwise stated)

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholder's Equity

Unit in Nos. Amount
(a) Unit Capital
Balance as on 17 July 2020* " i
Add: Units issued (refer note 15) 302,801,601 83,270.44
Less: [ssue expenses - (1,495.66)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 302,801,601 81,774.78
Balance as on 01 April 2021 302,801,601 81,774.78
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 202 1# - (297.05)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2021# - (605.60)
Add; Reversal of issue exp no longer payabl - 5.16
Balance as at 31 December 2021 302,801,601 80,877.29
(b) Other equity
Partiilir Retained earnings
Balance at 17 July 2020* -
Add: Profit for the period ended 31 March 2021 253.03
Add; Other comprehensive i for the period ended 3 | March 2021 (0.28)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 25275
Bal as on 01 April 2021 25275
Add: Profit for the nine months ended 31 D ber 2021 2,018.02
Add: Other comprehensive income for the nine months ended 31 December 2021 132
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2021# {1,519.76)
| Less: Distribution ta Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 Sep 2021# (1211.21)
Balance as at 31 D 2021 (458.88)

#The distributions made by Trust to its Unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Brookfield India REIT under the REIT Regulations.
(Refer foot note 2 and 3 of Net Distributable Cash Flows of Brookfield India REIT - Standalone)

Significant accounting policies (refer note 2)

‘The accompanying notes from 1 1o 48 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

* Since Brookfield India REIT was registered pursuant to a trust deed dated 17 July 2020, the management has provided the information in Condensed Consolidated
Statement of changes in Unitholder's Equity with effect from said date i.e. 17 July 2020 for period ended 31 March 2021.

As per our report of even date attached

For DELOTTTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
Firm Repistration No.: 015125N

%u

Anand Subramanian
Partner

Membership No: 110815
Place: Bengalur

Date: 11 February 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

I

(T, “’“p

Ankur Gupta Alok Aggarwal
Director Chief executive officer
DIN Mo, 0B687570 DIN No. 000059964
Flace: Mumbai Flace: Mumbai

Date: 11 February 2022

Sanjeey Kumar Sharma
Chief financial officer
DIN No. 002115963

Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 February 2022

Date: 11 February 2022



Brooldield Indin Real Estate Trust
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts are in Rupees million unless otherwise sinted)

53 required by Paragraph 6 to SEBI cireular No, CIR/IMD/DE/146/2016

MNet Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) o gui under Paragraph 6 to SEBI cireular No. CIR/IMIDVDF/146/2016
(i) Brookfield India REIT - Standalone

For the quarter For the quarter  For the nine monthy
SrNo. Particulars ended ended ended

31 December 2021 30 September 2021 31 December 2021

Cash flaws recaived from Assel SPVs, CIOP/Operating Service Provider and any investment entity in the fom of:

+ Interest {net of npplicable taxes, if any) 95746 131526 3,301.75
* Dividends (net of applicable xes, if any) 27.00 30.00 207,00
« Repuyment of Shareholder Dbt (or dek and ather similar instruments) 484.00 605.00 1,386.00
» Proceeds from buy-backs/ capitnl reduction/ redemptions (net of applicable taxes) - = =
Add: Proceeds from sale, (transfer or liquidation or redemption or otherwise realization) of i (including cash - - -
equivalents), assets or shares offinterest in Asset SPV, or aay form of fund mise at Brookfield REIT lovel, adjusted for

the following:

+ Applicable capiul gains and other taxes - . -

+ Related debis setiled or due to be settled from sale proceeds - - =

= Directly attnbutable transaction costs n " -

* Proceeds reinvested or planned to be rei d u3 per REIT Regulati E - =
+[ in shares or or shareholder debt of Asset SPVs and/ or CIOP/ Operating Sorvice Provider or - - -
other similar investments

+ Lending 1o Assets SFVs and/ or CIOP/ O pemting Service Provider - - -
Add; Proceeds from sale {transfer or liguidation or redemption or atherwi lization) of i assets or shares off - - -

interest in Asset SPVs not dismibuted pursuant 1o an earlier plan to re-invest as per REIT Regulations, if such proceeds are
not intended 10 be invested subsequently

Add: Any other income received at the Brookfisld REIT level and not captured herein, or refund/ waiver/ cessation of any 9.52 9.40 10.06
expenses! linbility.
Less: Any other expense (whether in the nature of revenue or capital expenditure) or any linbility or other payouts required (32.90) (40.26) (105.50)

1tthe Brookfield REIT level, and not captured herain
Less: Any payment of foes, including but not limited to:

+ Triisteo foes £ (2.95) (5.16)
+ REIT Management Fees (22.98) (22.95) (45.93)
+ Valuer foes (3.69) (0,98) (2.71)
+ Legal and professional fees (247) (10.25) (14.44)
» Trademark license fees - . -

» Secandment fees - - -
Add: Cash flow received from Asset SPY end investment entity, if any including ta the extent not covered above:

+ repayment of the debt in case of investmenis by way of debt . = 2

« proceeds from buy-backs/ capital reduction = o =
Add/ (Less): Debt drawdawn/ (payment) of intesest and rep on extemal debt (including any loans, bands; debentures . = -

or other form af debt funding) at the Brookfield REIT level

Less: Income tax and other taxes (if applicable) at the standalonc Broakfield REIT level (nct of any tax refunds) (3.68) (3.83) (7.75)
Add/Less); Cush inflows and outflows in relation to any real esumte properties held directly by the Brookfield REIT, to the - - -
extent not covered abeve (if any)

A =); Other adju [ but ot limited o net 2242 68.83 100.20
NDCF 143448 1,947.27 531652

e difference banween SPV feval NDCF and REIT level NDCF i primarily on account of ublization of opening cash at the SPV level

Notes:

The Board of Directors of the Manager to the Trust, in their meeting held an 11 February 2022, have declared distribution 1o Unitholders of Rs. 5.00 per unit which aggregates to Re. 1,514.01 million for the
quarter ended 31 D ber 2021, The distributions of Rs. 5.00 per unit comprises Rs. 3.28 per unit in the form of interest payment on shareholder loan, Rs. 0.10 per unit in the form of dividend, Rs, 1.59 per unit
in the form of repayment of SPY debt and the balanee Rs. 0.03 per unit in the form of interest on fixed deposit,

The Hoard of Directars of the Manager to the Trust, in their meeting held on 09 Navember 2021, had approved distribution to Unitholders of Rs. 6,00 per unit which aggregates to Rs. 1,816.81 million for the
quarter ended 30 Seprember 2021, The distributions of Ra. €00 per unit comprises Rs. 3,88 per unit in the form of interest payment on shareholder loan, Rs. 0.09 per unit in the form of dividend, Rs, 2,00 per unit
in the form of repayment of SPV debt and tha balance Ra. 0.03 per unit in the form of interest on fixed depasit.

“Thi Board of Directors of the Manager to the Trust, in their meeting held on 10 August 2021, hed app d distrik 10 Unitholders of Ra. 6.00 per unit which aggregated 1o Rs. 1,816.81 million For the quarier
ended 30 June 2021. The distributions of Rs, 6,00 per unit comprised of Rs, 4.57 per unit in the form of interest payment on shareholder loan and CCD's, Rs. 0.45 per unit in the form of dividend, Rs. 0.98 per unit
in the form of repayment of SPV debt and the balance Rs. 0.003 per unit in the form of interest on fixed deposit.

Statement of Net Distributable cash flows has not bieen disclosed for all the comparetive periods except for quarier ending 30 September 2021, since the first distribution of the REIT as siated in Final Offer
Document was made upon completion of the first full quarter ie. quarter ended 30 June 2021 after the lisung of the Units on the Stock Exchanges.

Significant eccounting policies (refer note 2)
The accompanying notes from | to 48 form an integral part of these Cond) d Consalidated Fi inl 5t

‘g per our repart of even date attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accounmnts Brookprop Manngement Services Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 0151258 {(as Manager to the Broekfield India REIT)

(A )
Anmnd Subramaninn Ankur Gupta Alok Aggarwal
Partner Director Chief exacutive officer
Membership No. 110815 DIN Mo, DEGETS70 DIN No., 00003964
Plice: Bengalur Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 February 2022 Date: 11 February 2022 Date: 11 February 2022

e
Sanjeey Kumar Sharms
Chief finuncial officer
DIN Ne. 00211963
Place; Mumbai

Date: 11 February 2022



Brookfield Indin Real Estate Trust
Cond 1 Conanlid

(All amounts are in Rnpul million unless otherwise siated)

Additional disclosures ns required by Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMIVDF{146/2016
Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursusnt fo guldoace under Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016
(ii) Calculntion of net distributable cash flows at each Asset SPY

Sr. No.

For the qunrter ended 31 December 2021
Candor Kolkats  SPPL Noidn CIOP Featus

(195.75) @) Bal  (131.90)

Particalars
| Profit/ (Loss) after tax as per statement of profit and loss (standalone) (A)
Adjustment
2 Add: Dey and impa a3 per St t of profit and loss
3 Addf(Less): Any other item of non-cash expense/ non -cash income (net of actuel cash flowa for these items),
a3 may be deemed necessary by the Manager.
For example, any decresse/ increase in carrying amount of an nsset or of a lisbility recognised in statement of
profit and lass/i and expenditure on of the asset or the liability at fair value, interest cost
as per effective interest rale method, deferred tax, lease rents recognised on a straight line basis, etc.
4 Addfless: Loss/gain on sale. transfer/ disposall liquidation of real estate essels, investments (including cash - - - - -
equivalents),other assets or shares of finterest in Assct SPVs.
5 Add: Proceeds from sale / liquidation/iransfer/ disposal of real estate assets, investments (including cash - - - - -
equivalents), assets or shares of / interest in Asset SPVs, adjusted for the following:
* Applicable capital gains and other taxes - - - - -
= Related debts settled or due to be settled from =ale proceeds - - - - -
* Any acquisition - - - - o
= Directly attributable transaction costs - - - - -
* Proceeds remvested or planned to be 1 as per REIT Regulati - - - - -
= Investment in any form as permitied under the REIT Regulations a5 may be deemed necessary by  the - - - - -
Manager
6 Add; Froceeds from sale of real estate mssets, investments, assets or sale of shares of Asset SPVa not - - - - .
distributed pursuant to an earlier plan 1o re-invest as per REIT Regulations, if such Js are not i
to be invested subsequently.
7 Add: Interest (or other similar pay ) on Shareholder Debt (or on deb
the Brookfield REIT) charged/ debited to the statement of profit and loss.
B Add!f[u!} Ollmr ad]umuus, mduimg but not limited to net changes in security deposits, working capital,
Vprepaid income or i/ prepaid diture, ete.
SLeuWammemth:nmuf:apml pendi
ather than Brookfield REIT), heads, ete.
10 Add/{Less): Net debt (repay )/ drawdown/ (redemption) of pref shares/ deb / any other such
instrument/ premiums/accrued interest any oiher obllmon# lmbllmu elc, to parties other than Brookfield
REIT, as may be deemed necessary by the Manager,
11 Add: Cash inflows in relation to equity/ non-refundable advances, efc. - - - - -
12 Less: Any dividends on ar ds: from or redemy or buy-backs or capital reduction of - - - - -
shares (ineludi ble instr held by nnyum other than the Brookfield REIT (either
directly or uﬂmully) and nny taxes thereon (including any fistrik tax or buy back distribution
tax, clo., if apphicable).

Total adjustments (B)
NDCF !_C.! = ‘M-B'

Note ;
I Statement of Net Distributable cash flows has not been disclosed for all the parative periods except for quarier ending 30 September 2021, since the fitst distribution of the REIT as stated in Final
Offer Document was made upon completion of the first full quarter je. quarter ended 30 June 2021 afler the listing of the Units on the Stock Exchanges.

Toul
(346.98)

296.06
(96.26)

163.47
(126.01)

71.08
(15.02)

030
(0.03)

5121
44 80

or other | held by Tad12 111.62 - 25139 1,107.13

180,43 (36.12) 18.96 (24.95) 13832

{125.44) (48.21)

i interest thereon (1o the parties (21.62) (1.28) (196,55)

159.02

15943 22961 - 548.06

L e

235.73
207.99

1785
2636

443,26
31136

1,099,582
904,07

1,796.76
1,449.78

Significant accounting policies (refer nate 2)
The accompanying notes from | to 48 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.
As per our repont of even date artached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 015125N

%M

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Manngement Services Private Limited
{as Manager to the Brookdield India REIT)

A

(jgfﬁﬁ“"’}p

Annnd Subramanisn Ankur Gupta Alok Aggarwal
Partner Director Chief executive officer
Membership No: 110815 DIN No. 08687570 DIN No. 00009554
Place: Bengaluru Place; Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date; 11 Februnry 2022

Deate: 11 February 2022

Sanjeev Kumar Sharma
Chief financial officer
DIN Ne. 00211963
Place; Mumbai

Date: 11 February 2022

Date; || February 2022



Brookfield India Real Estate Trust
Cond i Consolidated i e
{All nmounts are in Rupees million unless otherwise stated)

Additional disclosures as required by Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No, CIR/IMIVDF/146/2016
Net Distributnble Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIRIMD/DF/146/2016

(li) Calculation of net distributable cash flows at each Asset SPY

For the quarier ended 30 September 2021

Sr. No, Particulnrs Candor Kolksia  SPPL Noida Clop Featus Total
1 Profit / (Loss) after tax as per statement of profit and loss (standalone) (A) (129.70) (35.44) 13.99 (157.60) (308.75)
Adjustment
2 Add: Dep i 1zation and imipa as per Statement of profit and loss 16444 71.09 022 64.26 300,01
3 Add/(Less): Any other item of non-cash expense/ non -cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items), (48.97) (13.47) 145 58.28 (2.71)
a5 may be :Immd mannr byih:M:nlgu
For 0y / mcrease in carrying amount of an asset or of s liability recopnised in statement of

profit and lossfincome and expenditure on measurament of the aszet or the liability at fair value, interest cost
as per effective interest rate method, deferred tax, lease rents recognised on a straight line basis, ete.

4 Addfless: Loss/gain on sale. transfer/ disposel/ liquidation of real estate assets, investments (including cash - - - - -
equivalents),other assets or shares of finterest in Asset SPVs,
5 Add: Proceeds from sale / liquidation/transfer! disposal of real estate mssets, mvestments (including cash - - - - =

equivalents), assets or shares of / interest in Asset SPV, adjusted for the following:
+ Applicable capital gains and other taxes - - - - -
* Relnted debts settled or dus to be setiled from sale proceeds - - - - a
+ Any sequisition - i - - =
+ Directly attributable transaction costs - - - - -
* Proceeds reinvested or planned to be rei d as per REIT Regulati - - - - =
= Investment in any form as permitted under the REIT Regulations as may be deemed necessary by  the - - - - “
Manager

6 Add: Proceeds from sale of resl cstate assets, invesiments, asscts or sale of shares of Asset SPVs not - = a = =
distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest ns per REIT Regulations, if such p is are net i fed
to be invested subsequently.

7 Add; Interest {or other similar pay ) on Sharehalder Debt (or on deb or ather i held by 754.06 116:50 - 256.94 1,127.50
the Brookfield REIT) charged debited to the statement of profit and loss.

B Add/(Less): Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security deposits, warking eapital, (109.18) 69.26 1255 7.2 49.85
deferred/prepeid income or deferred/ prepaid expenditure, ete.

9 Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expendi ineludi italized interest thereon (1o the parties (84.03) (56.73) (0.09) (0.03) {140.88)
other than BrockReld REIT), capitalised overheads, ete.

10 Add/(Less): Net debt (repayment)! drawdown/ (red ian) of pref shares/ deb / any other such 21933 6234 - 51.08 34275

instrument/ premiums/acerued interest/ any other nbhuanumr liabilities cic., 1o partics other than Brookfield
REIT, as may be deemied necessary by the Mannger.

11 Add: Cash illflnws in relation to equity/ non-refundable advances, etc, - - - - =

12 Less: Any dividends on or s from repay or redemptions or buy-becks or capital reduction of - - - - -
shares (including compulsory convertible ln!wumam‘.ll. held by RAyIne nﬂwr L'Itln the Brookfield REIT
(either directly or indirectly), and any taxes thereon (including any ibution tex of buy back
distribution tax, ete., if applicable).
Tatal ldil.lll.mllﬂ.l !!I J05.65 248.99 14.13 S07.76 1,676.53
NDCF (C) = (A+B) 77595 213.55 28.12 350.16 1,367.78
Note ;

1 Smtement of Met Distributable cash fAows has not been disclosed for all the comparative periods except for quarter ending 30 Seplember 2021, since the first distribution of the REIT as stated in Final

Offer Documient was made upon completion of the first full quarter ie. quarter ended 30 June 2021 after the listing of the Units on the Stock Exchanges.
Significant acceunting palicies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from | to 48 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidnted Financial St

As per our repart of even date attached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Brookprop Munsgement Services Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 015125N (as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)

Annnd Subramanian Ankur Gupta Alok Aggarwal
Partner Director Chief executive officer
Membership No: 110815 DIN Na. 08687570 DIN No, 00009964
Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai Fluce: Mumbai

Date: 11 February 2022 Date: 11 February 2022 Date: 11 February 2022

__;'1_,"“
Sanjeev Kumar Sharmn
Chief financial officer
DIN Ne. 00211963
Place: Mumbai

Date: 11 February 2022



Brookfield Indin Real Estate Trust

C

d 4 lidated Fi il St

(All smounts are in Rupees million unless otherwise stated)

Additional discl

h 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMIYDF/146/2016

i by P

a3 req

Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) pursuant to guidance under Paragraph 6 to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMID/DF/146/2016

(i) Caleulation of net distributable cash flows at each Asset SPV

For the nine months ended 31 December 2021

Sr. No. Particulars

Candor Kolksta SPPL Noida clor Festus Total

1 Profit / (Loss) after tax as per statement of profit and loss (standslone) (A)
Adjustment

2 Add: Depreciation, amortization and impeirment as per Statement of profit and loss

3 Add/(Less); Any other item of non-cash expense/ non ~cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items),
as may he dcemcd neus!aryby the Manager.
For any d /i in camying amount of an asset or of a lisbility recognised in statement of
profit nnd loss/income and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value, interest cost
&4 per effective interest rate method, deferred tax, lease rents recopnised on a straight line basis, ete,

4 Addfless: Loss/gain on sale. transfer/ disposal/ liquidation of real estate assets, investments (including cash
equivalents),other assets or shares of /interest in Asset SPVs,

5 Add: Proceeds from sale / liquidstion/transfer/ disposal of real estate ssets, investments (including cash

equivalents), assets or shares of / interest in Asset 8PV, adjusted for the following:

* Applicable capital gains and other taxes

» Related debts settled or due 1o be settled from sale proceeds

* Any acquisition

» Directly aftributable tansaction costs

» Proceeds rei d or planned to be d as per REIT Regulations

« Inyestment in any form as permitted under the REIT Regulations as may be deemed necessary by  the

Manager

Add: Proceeds from sale of real estate assets, investments, assets or sale of shares of Asset SPVs nol

distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest as per REIT Regulations, if such p 15 are not intended

to be invested subsequently.

7 Add: Interest (or other similar p ) on Shareholder Debt (or on det

the Brookfield REIT) charged/ debited to the statement of profit and lass.

Add/(Less); Other adjustments, including but not limited to net changes in security deposits, working capital,

deferred/prepaid income or deferred/ prepaid expenditure, ete,*

9 Less: Any expense in the nature of capital expenditure including capitalized interest thereon (to the parties

other than Brookfield REIT), capitalised overheads, ete.

Add/i(Less): Net debt (rep t)/ drawdown/ (red 1) of prefi shares/ debentures/ any other such

instrument! premiums/accrued nterest/ any other ubhgannns" fiabilities elc., to partics other than Brookfield

REIT, a5 may be deemed necessary by the Manager.

11 Add: Cash mﬂmm relation to t:qml;mi non-refundable advances, etc,

12 Less: Any di ds on or p from. repay ar ptions or buy-backs or capital seduction of
shares (including cnmpuhury convertible mtmmmls). hzld by anyons nﬂnﬂr Hnn the Brookfield REIT
(either directly or indirectly), and any taxes thereon (b g any divid ibution tax or buy back
distribution tax, etc., if applicable).

Total adjustments (B)

-

or other instruments held by

10

(406.53) (100,36) 1344 (417.52)  (910.97)

89797
(81.75)

494,07
(208.39)

21346
(31.52)

18972
15732

072
124

225554 346.29 - 75816 3,350.99

86746 B5.04 89.18 (63.39) 978.29

(146.99) (274.60) (2.08) (4832)  (471.99)

38875 380.42 - 210.10 97827

3,650.44 T18.62 89.06 1,203,59  5,661,78

NDCF (C) = (A+B)

3,243.91 61833 102.50 786.07  4,750.81

*NDCF for the nine months ending 31 December 2021 includes NDCF for the period 08 February 2021 to 31 March 2021 amounting to Rs, 759.47 million which hus been included in other

adjustment.
Note :
1 Siaternent of Net Digtributable cash flows has not been discl

d for all the

parative periods except for quarter ending 30 September 2021, since the first distribution of the REIT as stated n

Final Offer Document was made upon completion of the first full quarter ic. quarter ended 30 June 2021 after the listing of the Units on the Stock Exchanges,

Significant accounting policies (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these Condensed Consolidated Financial S

As per our report of even date sttached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Aceauntants
Firm Registration No.:

015125N

‘Anand Subramanian
Partner

Membership No: 110815
Place: Bengalury

Date: 11 February 2022

For nnd on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)
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Organization structure

The intennm Cond i C lidated fi 1al (* Cond: d C lidated Fmancial 5 ") comprise fi ial of Brookfield India Real Estate Trust
(‘Brookfield Indin REIT or Trust’) and its subsidinries namely St Properties Private Limited (SPPL Noidn"), Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Strucrures Private Limited
('Candor Kolkate'), Festus Properties Private Limited ('Festus”) and Candor Incdia Office Parks Private Limited ('CIOP') (individually referred to as 'Special Purpose Vehicle' or *SPV*
and b ferred to as 'Brookfield India REIT Portfolio companies’ or ‘Group’), The SPVs are companies domiciled in India.

Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the *Settlor’) has set up the Brookfield India Real Estate Trust on 17 July 2020, as an irmevocable trust, pursuant to the Trust Deed, |
under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and the Trust has been registered with SEBI as a Ren! Estate Investment Trust on 14 September 2020 under Regulation 6 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, The Trustee to Brookfield Indin Resl Estate Trust is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the
‘“Trustee’) and the Manager for Brookfield India Real Estate Trust is Brookprop Management Services Private Limited (the 'Manager').

The objectives of Brookfield India REIT is to undertake activities in ' with the p of the SEBI REIT Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of
Brookfield India REIT is to own and invest in rent or income penerating, real estate and related asssts in India with the objective of producing stable and ble distributions to
Unitholders,

Brookfield India REIT scquired the following SPVs by acquiring all the equity interest held by the Sponsar and certain members of Sponsor Group (refer note 40) on 08 February
2021. In exchange for these equity i , the above sharcholders have been allotted 127,892,403 Units of Brookfield India REIT valued at Rs. 275/- cach.

Brookfield India REIT went public as per its plan for [nitial Public Offer of Units after obtaiming the required approvals from the rel y

The Units were allotted to the

successiul applicants on 08 February 2021 and 11 February 2021,

All these Units were subsequently listed on the Nati

1 Stock Excl

(NSE) and Bombay Stock Exct

‘The brief ectivities end shareholding pattern of the SPV's are provided below:

(BSE) on 16 February 2021,

Name of SPV Activities Shareholding up to 08 Februnry 2021 (in Shareholding from 08 February 2021 (in
percentope) percentage)

SPPL Noida Developing and leasing of commercial real BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd.: 100% Brookfield India REIT : 100%
estate property in Indin, primarily in BSREP Moon C1 L.P.: 0.00% (10 Shares) Candor India Office Parks Private Limited : 0.00%
IT/1TeS sectar in Sector 62, Noida, Uttar (1 shares) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT)
Pradesh.

Candor Kolkata Developing and leasing of commercial real BSREP India Office Holdings V Pre. Lid.: 99.97% Brookfield India REIT : 100%
estate property in Indin, primarily in BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd.; 0.03% Candeor India Office Parks Private Limited : 0,00%
ITATeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in (1 shares) (as nominee of Brookfield India REIT)
New Town, Rajarhat, Kolkata and Sector
21, Dundahera Curogram

clop Providing management related service BSREP Moen Cl L.P.; 99.59% Brookfield India REIT ; 100%

Iuding facilities service and BSREP Meon C2L.P.: 0.01% Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private
property managemenl services, Limited : 0.00% (1 shares) (as nominee of
Brookfield India REIT)
Festus Developing and leasing of commercial real Kairos Property Managers Pvt. Ltd.:10.76% Brookfield India REIT : 100%

estale property in Indis, primarily in
ITATeS Special Economic Zone (SEZ) in
Powai, Mumbai.

BSREP Il India Office Haldings II Pte, Ltd.:89.24%

Candar India Office Parks Private Limited : 0.00%
(1 shares) (as nominee of Brockfield India REIT)
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation of Condensed Consolidated financial statements

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Brookfield India REIT comprises the Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2021, the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive income) and the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flow for the quarter and nine months ended 31 December 2021, the Condensed Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity for the nine months ended 31 December 2021, the Statement of Net
Distributable Cash Flow of Brookfield India REIT and each of the SPVs for the quarter and nine months
ended 31 December 2021, a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information and other additional financial disclosures as required under the SEBI (Real Estate
Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements were
authorized for issue in accordance with resolutions passed by the Board of Directors of the Manager on
behalf of the Brookfield India REIT on 11 February 2022. The Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Real Estate Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with the SEBI circular number
CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 (“REIT Regulations™) ; Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (‘Ind AS”) to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations
(refer note 15(a)(i) on presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” instead of compound instruments
under Ind AS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation), read with relevant rules issued thereunder and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Accordingly, these interim condensed consolidated financial statements do not include all the
information required for a complete set of financial statements. These interim condensed consolidated
financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related
notes included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements under IND AS for the period ended
31 March 2021. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a
change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Millions, except
when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Significant accounting policies
a) Basis of Consolidation

The Brookfield India REIT consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the Brookfield India REIT and
its subsidiary SPVs as disclosed in Note 1. Control exists when the parent has power over the entity, is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns by using its power over the entity. Power is demonstrated through existing rights
that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity’s returns.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences until the date control ceases.

The procedure adopted for preparing Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Brookfield India
REIT is stated below:

i) The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using the principles of
consolidation as per Ind AS 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ii) The financial statements of the Group are consolidated by combining/adding like items of assets,
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows.

iii) [ntragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of Brookfield India REIT are eliminated in full;

iv) The figures in the notes to accounts and disclosures have been Consolidated line by line and
intragroup transactions and balances including unrealized profit are eliminated in full on consolidation.

b) Functional and presentation currency

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is Brookfield
India REIT’s functional currency and the currency of the primary economic environment in which
Brookfield India REIT operates. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded
off to nearest million except unit and per unit data.

¢) Basis of measurement

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for certain financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as explained
in the accounting policies below.

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
d) Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS), to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT
regulations, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements is included in the following notes:
(i) presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” in accordance with the REIT Regulations instead
of compound instrument (Note 15)
(ii) determination of useful life and residual values of investment property and property, plant
and equipment (Note 2.2 (g) and (h))
(iii)  classification of assets as investment property or as property, plant and equipment (Note

2.2 (g) and (h)) )

(iv)  determination of recoverable amount / fair value of investment property (Note 2.2 (g), and
Note 41)

(v) impairment of financial assets, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (Note
2.2 (i) and (1))

(vi)  recognition and measurement of provisions for contingencies and disclosure of contingent
liabilities (Note 2.2 (q) and Note 34)

(vii)  determination of lease term (Note 2.2 (n))

(viii) recognition / recoverability of deferred tax assets (Note 2.2 (p))
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e) Current versus non-current classification

Brookfield India REIT presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
based on current/ non-current classification:
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the normal operating cycle;
- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to seftle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Brookfield India REIT classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle of Brookfield India REIT;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Brookfield India REIT does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Brookfield India REIT classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/ liabilities respectively.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

f) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, Brookfield India REIT takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
and how market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

Inputs to fair value measurement techniques are disaggregated into three hierarchical levels, which are
directly based on the degree to which inputs to fair value measurement techniques are observable by
market participants:

e Level 1: Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

e Level 2: Inputs (other than quoted prices included in Level 1) are either directly or indirectly
observable for the asset or liability through correlation with market data at the measurement date
and for the duration of the asset’s or liability’s anticipated life.

o Level 3: Inputs are unobservable and reflect management’s best estimate of what market
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Consideration is
given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and the risk inherent in the inputs in determining
the estimate.
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Fair value measurements are adopted by Brookfield India REIT to calculate the carrying amounts of
various assets and liabilities.

g) Investment properties
Recognition and measurement

Investment property consists of commercial properties which are primarily held to eam rental income
and commercial developments that are being constructed or developed for future use as commercial
properties. The cost of commercial development properties includes direct development costs, realty
taxes and borrowing costs directly attributable to the development. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Equipment and furnishings physically attached and integral to a building are considered to be part of
the investment property.

Subsequent expenditure and disposal

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the investment property’s carrying amount only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Brookfield India
REIT and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost of the assets not ready for its intended
use before such date, are disclosed as investment property under development. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.

Any gain or loss from disposal of an investment property is recognized in Statement of profit and loss.
Depreciation

Investment property is depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. The
useful lives of the assets have been determined by management after considering nature of assets, the
estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement and

maintenance support.

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The useful lives of the investment property are tabulated as below:

Particulars Useful Life (Years)
Buildings 60

Plant and Machinery 4-15

Furniture and Fixtures 10-12

Electrical fittings 4-15

Diesel generator sets 15-25

Air conditioners 5-15

Office Equipment 5-12

Kitchen Equipment 5

Computers 3-6

Right of Use (Leasehold Land)

As per lease term
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The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the statement of net assets at fair value. Fair values
are determined by an independent valuer who holds a recognized and relevant professional qualification
and has recent experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued.

h) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises the purchase price, including import duties
and other non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the
purchase price.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Likewise, on
initial recognition expenditure to be incurred towards major inspections and overhauls are required to
be identified as a separate component and depreciated over the expected period till the next overhaul
expenditure.

Subsequent expenditure and disposal

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the property, plant and equipment’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Brookfield India REIT and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of a property, plant and equipment is
replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.

Any gain or loss from disposal of a property, plant and equipment is recognized in Statement of profit
and loss.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives. The useful lives of the assets have been determined by management after considering nature of
assets, the estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of
replacement and maintenance support.

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which
asset is ready for use (disposed off).

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over primary period of lease or the useful life of the asset,
whichever is lower.
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Estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are tabulated as follows: -

Particulars Useful Life (Years)
Buildings 60
Plant and Machinery 5-20
Furniture and Fixtures 5-14
Electrical fittings 10
Air conditioners 5-15
Office Equipment 4-15
Kitchen Equipment 5
Vehicle 8
Computers 3-14
Computer Software 5

Intangible assets comprise purchase of software. Intangible assets are carried at cost and amortized over
a period of 5 years, which represents the period over which the Brookfield India REIT expects to derive
economic benefits from the use of the assets.

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and the amortization period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

i) Impairment of non-financial assets

Brookfield India REIT assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that a non-
financial asset other than deferred tax assets may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Brookfield India REIT estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

An impairment loss is recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss if the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU
on a pro rata basis. A CGU is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that are
largely independent from other assets and groups.

Impairment losses are recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, unless
it reverses previous revaluation credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity.

Goodwill (if any) arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or group of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU'’s fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. In estimating value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested
individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGU.
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Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets, such a reversal is made only to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

j) Foreign currency transactions

Items included in the financial statements of the Brookfield India REIT are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Brookfield India REIT operates (‘the functional
currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Brookfield India
REIT functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains or
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at reporting period end exchange rates are generally
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

k) Errors, estimates and change in accounting policies

The Brookfield India REIT revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in
Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and reliable information to the users of the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. Changes in accounting policies are applied
retrospectively, wherever applicable.

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets
or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively in the period(s) of change. Discovery of errors
results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and equity
of the earliest prior period in which the error is discovered. The opening balances of the earliest period
presented are also restated.

I) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial Assets - Recognition

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value (except for trade receivables which are initially
measured at transaction price) plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Classification and subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

* Debt instruments at amortized cost

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
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a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization
is included in interest income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

* Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and
b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
However, interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss is
recognized in statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest
earned whilst holding FVOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

* Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Brookfield India REIT may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so
reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch’). The Brookfield India REIT has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in Statement of profit or loss.

» Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Brookfield India REIT
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the
fair value. The Brookfield India REIT makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Brookfield India REIT decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Brookfield
India REIT may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.
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Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Financial Assets - Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognized (i.e., removed from the Brookfield India REIT balance sheet) when:

= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

+ The Brookfield India REIT has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Brookfield India REIT has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Brookfield India REIT has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

Brookfield India REIT recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the
financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables
with no significant financing component and lease receivables is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than trade receivable and lease
receivables, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime
ECL. The amount of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting
date, is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit and loss.

(iv) Financial liabilities — Recognition and Subsequent measurement

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less any attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, these are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (‘'EIR') method or at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Brookfield India REIT financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
* Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through Statement of
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose
of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Brookfield India REIT that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in Statement of profit and loss.
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through Statement of profit or loss

are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own
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credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains or losses are not subsequently transferred to statement of
profit and loss. However, the Brookfield India REIT may transfer the cumulative gains or losses within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in Statement of profit and loss.
The Brookfield India REIT has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or
loss.

* Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not held for trading, or designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently
at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and
of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortized cost
of a financial liability.

(v) Financial liabilities - Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss as other
gains/(losses).

(vi) Income/loss recognition
« Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. While calculating
the effective interest rate, the Brookfield India REIT estimates the expected cash flows by considering
all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

= Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per effective interest rate (EIR) and exchange differences
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest
cost.

Borrowing costs associated with direct expenditures on properties under development or redevelopment
or property, plant and equipment are capitalized. The amount of borrowing costs capitalized is
determined first by borrowings specific to a property where relevant, and then by a weighted average
cost of borrowings to eligible expenditures after adjusting for borrowings associated with other specific
developments. Where borrowings are associated with specific developments, the amount capitalized is
the gross borrowing costs incurred less any incidental investment income. Borrowing costs are
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capitalized from the commencement of the development until the date of practical completion. The
Brookfield India REIT considers practical completion to have occurred when the physical construction
of property is completed and the property is substantially ready for its intended use and is capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and
charged to the Statement of profit and loss during the extended periods when the active development
on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

(vii) Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated.
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated. Derivatives embedded in
all other host contract are separated only if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

m) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Brookfield India REIT assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset, the Brookfield India REIT assesses whether:

e the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not
identified;

e the Brookfield India REIT has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

e the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Brookfield India REIT
has this right when it has the decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how and
for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what
purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Brookfield India REIT has the right to direct the
use of the asset if either;

o the Brookfield India REIT has the right to operate the asset; or
o the Brookfield India REIT designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for
what purpose it will be used.

As a lessee

The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the
lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those
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of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Brookfield India REIT’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Brookfield
India REIT uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following;

o fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;
amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
the exercise price under a purchase option that the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain
to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Brookfield India REIT is
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease
unless the Brookfield India REIT is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
change in the Brookfield India REIT’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or if the Brookfield India REIT changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Brookfield India REIT presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment
property in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities (current and non-current) in the
statement of financial position.

The Brookfield India REIT has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-
term leases of machinery that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The
Brookfield India REIT recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a Lessor

The Brookfield India REIT enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to its investment
properties.

Leases for which the Brookfield India REIT is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Brookfield India REIT is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sub-
lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference
to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.
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Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at the amount of the
Brookfield India REIT’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Brookfield India REIT’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease components, the Brookfield India REIT applies Ind
AS 115 to allocate the consideration under the contract to each component.

n) Revenue recognition

Revenues are measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of tax collected
from customers and remitted to government authorities such as Goods and Services tax, and applicable
service level credits, discounts or price concessions. The computation of these estimates involves
significant judgment based on various factors including contractual terms, historical experience,
expense incurred etc.

i. Income from Operating Lease Rentals

Assets given under operating lease are included in investment property. Revenue recognition under a
lease commences when the tenant has a right to use the leased asset. Generally, this occurs on the lease
commencement date. Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances including renewal, termination and market conditions.

Income from Operating Lease Rentals also includes percentage participating rents. Percentage
participating rents are recognized when tenants’ specified sales targets have been met.

ii. Income from maintenance services

Income from maintenance services consists of revenue earned from the provision of daily maintenance,
security and administration services, and is charged to tenants based on the occupied lettable area of the
properties. [ncome from maintenance services is recognized when the entity has satisfied its
performance obligation by delivering services as per terms of contract entered into with tenants.

o) Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund, gratuity and compensated absences.

Provident fund

The Brookfield India REIT 's contribution to provident fund is considered as defined contribution plans

and is charged as an expense in statement of profit and loss based on the amount of contribution required
to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees.
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Gratuity

Brookfield India REIT has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined post-employment benefits plan
covering eligible employees. The present value of the defined benefit liability and the related current
service cost and past service cost are measured using projected unit credit method; with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and
losses are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit to other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income
are not reclassified. Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss when the plan amendment or
curtailment occurs, or when the Brookfield India REIT recognizes related restructuring costs or
termination benefits, whichever is earlier.

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognized during the period when the employees render the
service, These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected
to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related
service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase
their entitlement of future compensated absences; and
(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.,

Other Long-term employee benefits

The employees of the Brookfield India REIT are entitled to other long term benefit by way of
accumulating compensated absences. Cost of long-term benefit by way of accumulating compensated
absences arising during the tenure of the service is calculated taking into account the pattern of
availment of leave. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at
the present value of the defined benefit obligation based on actuarial valuations as at the balance sheet
date by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit method. Actuarial gains and losses
relating to long-term employee benefits are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the period
in which they arise.

p) Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in Statement of profit and loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income,
in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

(i) Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.
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Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) under the provisions of the Income Tax, 1961 is recognised as
current tax in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of profit and loss. The credit available under the
Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as a deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Brookfield India REIT will pay normal income tax during the period for
which MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised
as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing
evidence no longer exists.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss
at the time of the transaction;

- Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Brookfield India REIT is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- Taxable temporary differences arising on initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, Brookfield
India REIT recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against
which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets—unrecognised or recognised, are
reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/reduced to the extent that it is probable/no longer
probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised, Further, no deferred tax asset/liabilities
are recognized in respect of temporary differences that reverse within tax holiday period.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Brookfield India REIT expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
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q) Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognized when the Brookfield India REIT has a present obligation as a result of past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
seftle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Brookfield India REIT or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also
arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Brookfield India REIT does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the
Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under
the contract.

r) Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

Identification of segments:

In accordance with Ind AS 108- Operating Segment, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of information reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(*CODM?) to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance. An operating segment is
a component of the Brookfield India REIT that engages in business activities from which it earns
revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of
the Brookfield India REIT’s other components.

Based on an analysis of Brookfield India REIT’s structure and powers conferred to the Manager to
Brookfield India REIT, the Governing Board of the Manager (Brookprop Management Services Private
Limited) has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM'), since they are
empowered for all major decisions w.r.t. the management, administration, investment, disinvestment,
etc.

As the Brookfield India REIT is primarily engaged in the business of developing and maintaining
commercial real estate properties in India, CODM reviews the entire business as a single operating
segment and accordingly disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments” in respect of
reportable segments are not applicable.

s) Subsequent events
The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared after reflecting adjusting and non- |

adjusting events that occur after the reporting period but before the Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements are authorized for issue.
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t) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money market deposits
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

u) Earnings per unit

Basic earnings per unit are calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) for the period attributable to unit
holders of the Brookfield India REIT by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the
period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per unit, the profit or loss for the period attributable to
unit holders of the Brookfield India REIT and the weighted average number of units outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential units.

Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have
been issued at a later date, In computing diluted earnings per unit, only potential equity units that are
dilutive and which either reduces earnings per unit or increase loss per units are included.

v) Business Combination/Asset Acquisition

The amendment to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations clarifies that while businesses usually have
outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated set of activities and assets to qualify as a business.
To be considered a business an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs,

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any
missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce outputs. The amendments also introduce
additional guidance that helps to determine whether a substantive process has been acquired.

The amendments introduce an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional concentration test,
the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross
assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar assets.

Brookfield India REIT has opted to apply optional concentration test in respect of acquisition of SPVs.
Refer Note 42 of the financial statements for details.

w) Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash flows

Condensed Consolidated Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby Profit/ (loss)
before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Group are segregated. For the purpose of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits.

x) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Condensed
Consolidated Balance Sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
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to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

y) Cash distribution to Unitholders

The Brookfield India REIT recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to Unitholders when the
distribution is authorized and a legal obligation has been created. As per the REIT Regulations, a
distribution is authorized when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Manager. A
corresponding amount is recognized directly in equity (Refer note 15 (a)(i)).




s e
65101 T & T = £THIL (¢T'0) 0L's L9B6 2
D Ho 20 = W = = 980 =
— . —
LTT0T 09T 09’ = Leeol _MZ.... LS 1785 =
HE66 3 5 = 68101 10 oLs 1596 =
= [ o0 L 00’ = 00 = = §0°0 =
= 650 e 100 = 030 = = 030 -
= SEW 50 - 50 - oy = - Ly =
& oB'sT 68D = 640 = 6952 & 910 £0°92 c
L we i % 'l % ¥4 (zro) e 61'E9 =
- HI'E oo = o . e L wz w1 =
® [ 50D 500 * WL (oo} - [ % i1 qn|
= [ [ = [T 2> 80 = = BLO S smdmbs 230
E YT 600 - 800 - &1 (200} = =3 = SAUNLYTY U 2Ny
E wo = - 2 x w00 < = 200 = Aeumaom poe )
- 200 = = 100 = = 800 emndme )
b wn - - o 5 » 200 JaOpeo3 Iy
(ans) spassy
pouad suonsmbe
OTOT 40 (€ 1200 Yl 1€ 1707 Wl IE suaugslpy posad azoz Anr 81 1707 Iy 1€ simugmlpy | g Somnp fsTE 0T0Z fF 8T cEmInsg
18 68 BD0NEg 8 £ 0Ny T puotapg |3 dopaduwyy | e swaamepeg ¢ T2 Iy napg nIppy | o) anp suor 1 m oeEg
pajy BN vonupaudap pam sy 91 55045
r— — = - p—
657101 WL PEsl = OTEL T 95LEL EFEE £THOT TV.LOL ONVHD _
Tro 0z 520 T ] EE0 = a0 T
fasty ajq ey
— — — -~ —
LIT0T Wl RES1 [ 09 OTLEL £FEE Lieot
9E66 oE Izl wrl [0 15T TESEL EFEE 6101
800 W00 00 W 0o 00 000 00
650 o 500 S0 0o (D] = we
SEF ¥IE sHT - 6l 3] 655 z w@o 0¥
1§74 BLTT o5 19 6810 [ 680 69°9
559 £1'T6 L9 e Tl 09'36 = 907 599 Ammem pue ey
yo's T 50 = < 00 LUE = 20’0 "ne Haungrpems ay
(uwunmu) nasry
6T w0 951 - vl T Wi v = W1 ﬂmﬁ
) oo 820 - $TO oo ) % = (4] uemdmnbs 20|
Ll e ni = w1 600 0T * - €l SAIMNY paR A |
wo 000 w00 E w0 = wo = - we Amemaem poz wE(g
80°0 oo 800 E 0o . ¥0°0 £ 500 sandumg
o e 00 = o S ] - Lwa Juompus Ay
(ays) masey
IO WU I | 1207 89quasag ¢ | [Zo7ssquessqg g | symampnipy pouad 707 12y 1o 1207 f2qunaq jg SEunsnipy pouad 1207 149V 1D simanmy
¥ §% ouejeg 1 5F auvjeg 1E 5 23uw e frusnaEg am Joj Ak AT AouRfeg ¥ £¥ JouN[Eg [uNnIRL gy Juunp sUHIpPPY ¥ U 3uEg
Po|q BN vapepadap paiemEnI Y H2u[q Fsoig 3

sasse 3 Q) por jmdinka pos jeeyd (Gpadasg ¢

el

2 om0y oy

(payms aspss o ssapun suol i ssadny oy auw sonowe Gy)

ey 4 PPl I L™ §
nz._.ua_ai:.m.a__!._,_s.n



SEGIFT EIILY LO°TGF uad 2q) 10) @ vonEnadag
[(T53] @0 a0y (o) progaseag} 6m Jo 19dny vo pousd vanannsuoa ay Frmp donwsaidag] -]
wrn) [f230] wrn pemEipdes - aeee aus oo pousd wopangsues sy fump voamaadaq 5]
TUOIF'T LT 90'06F pouzd s oy fndod paumsaas ve vegepasdap mol
oTEl e [ pouad 2 s0) wemdnba puw jeyd ‘Amdod so sogmaadap maj
1207 $2quRdq 1€ 1207 0F 1707 " —— 15p (9304 40} Dey
pape spoom papa3 papoa
ELLELIELE | Jaumnb 3y S04 sapenb a) sog
05 146001 9TEDE'EE OE'FILT = TU0IKI RIFIC SRTY 01 LI HIT 699 [T Ll
FLT6L TEe6 = = = = U866 1FHIL [ FETGL wamdopasp
span fuadesd 1EuNAL] - #1901 gog
PLTGL TUE66 £ 1TE66 (19von) 21°90E BLIGL ssarfosd v spop
yuswdspaap sapon - fuadosd yeausaan]
aLLI 001 SU0IE'EE DEHTLT ICOTF'L EYFIE SFHEYI0T 3 150pL P REY 001 Auadoag uusaan] - (119) gg
LFFE FL'ER TFI1 150l [ 9155 - 66 LEIF [£101 gng]
0zo o000 070 o . ] = = o wRindwa)
SET £9°01 Wl {[3] Lo [Fard | 2 6L°6 (i mamdinka gagay
W o'l o o 100 44 e = 444 Jusmdnba 330
wr fra g e (1] 00 (Fid - = 143 Ay po g
LT 860 (2] 9TL EFT L962 = - L6 Fampa) § aminmy
06 Ty 60 550 g 0L E = (174 SausnpunD oY
anEN Hﬂm.—ln_xc
e B3 3 01 P TaEIAE ‘(o paoj) RaseY
[ [ WELLLT = 0766C T WLTIE GLELE 0L = TLOEL LIFHFF 00T T aug |
[LH 70 Teo = 520 500 ¥IT - = [ [T
9El {134 LT = SLE w1 rEL = o 291 nuaedimby 2upg
ey 165k §rE & “wr L8 956Er = = 9665 F {pimf pyagseaf) an o 1qdng
LI 65'51T £E09 = se iz 9L = +HEL B6T9T TG U ST
74 03] e TieL - Fi'99 w6l 159 F i ET'159 mos aopeaaad sy
(T ] BERLL GESOl = BFLE L[5} L6 ERE = 1EE Sooen Assumysem pu et
BO'SLL 60'FET 9okl = 601 TEH0E STFIE - szl 0’903 nuamdinba 5 sdumyy ooy
1ZLRIT 16780°1 BIELT & ZE9l LT 0rZETT - w BEE0TT LDUOTIRO0S Iy
LUELEL LR T QLLLll = e SO HTIY0L % 'ER IB8LE'0L sBurpymgg
FPOBSTST FH0RE'CT = ® = = FORE ST = = FROBS ST P PRty
asw| dmmywrade
oo Rald 3 o) papadta/masd paranroo) FEry
1707 47 1E 1Z0T S2qu=aag [E 10T 53qWa33q 1 wEamEn|py pouad 1zoz 1y 1o 1ZaZ =quasa I nmmiEnlpy pousad 1707 LAY 1o
iy WY 0y Ry RTERg MunEaEg el L-_wﬂﬂ._lﬁ & Ty DUE[Eg 185y g fAnenapq S—-ui_hnw PPy Y DURey wmnEg
2201 BN dap parnmnasy EELLE)

Aysadoad sy ¢

[eDaRE) pIjEpRoeraay puOY ) o) F=Ray

(paamis ansage swajon an_.i.n GL._.: o1 A Suno e [y)

- o i "
1AL INIEF [EIY WPU] PRIPo0IG



SL9IE popsad a1 40 3smdia vogepasdag

o (PUm prowoFwL) 2 10 WgBng w0 pousd usEIRTFUas o6 Brlmp Gy -]

0] pamEiides - massy =)t oo pousd wanangsues sq fuung uonepadsg -we]

BIPIE pouad 2 105 Auadord W2 ENsEAT U0 UoTERaNdap oL

WL pouzsd s roj jEymdmba pre joeyd ‘Aedosd vo sogpemaidap oy

TI0T (PR I :36udm noprnIIddp (0] 10) SONVEIE0IAY

01 620% A(nf L1 wWoig

‘T O i uenmpr st Jaj feeq |7 20U mpy uenmnby sz o wnd m paumboe wasg savg sesw 2n0gy,

= U5 IL6 001 BIFIE = BIFIE - AIRTIOT €9°c01) SFEEL SEI0r 101 = Fiel
] FET6L = = - E FLT6L "Eat) TOTLT FOELL - awdepaag

dapun fudoag JEIuniaaa] - (F101 gng

- AL FLTEL (z9'ean) 20°TLT PEETL ssarflasd o ya
yuawdopaap rapan - {uadoad juamsan] |

i SLGLT00T BFIE = BFFIE = ladaials (10°0) Er9ll TOHLE'DOT - Autadog 1wEIAR] - [K10) qog
= L oGl [} = LESF = = LEYF ] [ n-w“
- [T - - . wo ". ] ozo = ma,
= SET Lro Lo % (431 ] - T 5 pauzdmba magamny
- T 00 500 oy T [k . 1= wdinbs B0
= LA 600 600 = 18y = W = Arunpum s s
FRT ¥l EVT = LY6L = L6 = FAURNT] - 2TYALA ]

w9 El'D £ro S0°L * oL = MRE0mpN0a Iy

3] Junyeaado |

oo gaaf 3q o3 pawrad rayoaard unes poog) ey
= GTEET001 BLTIE = RLTIE B LUBFFO0T (To'al EFOIT €9 TEE 00T 2 T¥101 gug |
07 500 v 500 " 1 " 50 o - wEndwoy) |

9851 1w = 1wt = L5981 3 La'91 Twmdiny snpg

606K LE0 = fig] = SEEEE = % 9666 = {puz| progasus)) esn jo gy

LI 4 ({4 ¥4 wit 4 679 (100 = 66292 = LI PO LI |

STREY 2T [ - €159 = = [z 4 (7] = w9 = psa

SLTIR 1641 = 16T = 9008k * 8¢ HELLE 5 AU pu g

SOCLL 508 = 606 £l 00508 - L6 E0'508 £ 1uaendinbs g efumpy matnas|g

TELRI LT 1 LLTT B BE60TT = (ean) 190121 = ADNOTYEOs Y

LEELEOL ro'soT = OG0T ¥ [F8L50L Lo SE°TLI 9T9E'0L = sdupyng

HOREET = = = = FEOBS'ST = X FEORE'ST = po] plogaati]

| Funnadoe.

o0 =gl aq 03 papadiauead (panngime) Rany

pouad
0I0T PNy IE 1207 4ol 1C 1Z0T Yaawpy ¢ nmmmEnipy pouad QTOT Snr 81 TZUT TI= TE aEummipy agy Suunp |, oemnabor psow OTOT Amop 4T
way ¥E 6y 3ew(Eg Py g frEstpRg am day dfiegy 18 sy g 1 5y Do fEonapg soonippy | o1anp sRemippy | iE sy sl wEmanEg
019 BN uoympaadap V WOy sosn
1 pRawpijerno] g PE0D AT 01 B0

{payms n-_.rn-.uu sE{un -i.m—_-n 5aadny] Ul ¥ HEBOLE [[Y)

5 [WpavuLy Plosang L® |
19T |, 91T (99 EfpU] PRURDME



o™

-1

Brookfield Indin Real Estate Trust

Condensed Consolidated Financial §

(All amounts are in Rupees millione unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Cond d Cy i s ial

Non current financial assets - Other

({Unsecured and considered good)

Fixed deposits with banks*

Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits with banks
Lease rent equalization®*

As st
31 December 2021

Axnt
31 March 2021

L16 257.53
.03 1.50
88.77 2280
89.96 281.83

*Asat 3] December 2021, these fixed depasits are of restricted use being lien against state authonty, As at 31 March 2021, these fixed deposits were of restricted use being lien

against debt service reserve account, bank guarantees given to verious authorities and security for sales tax registration.

**Lease rent equalization are clnssified as Financial assets as right to consideration is unconditional and is due only after passage of time.

Deferred tax asset (net)
Deferred tax asset (net)

Asat As at
31 December 2021 31 Murch 2021
281773 264123
1,817.73 2,641.23

The Group has recognised deferred tax asset of Rs. 2 29"-' 01 uulllon (31 March 2021: Rs. 1,729.06 millicn) on unabsosbed depreciation and Rs. 96486 mullion (31 March

2021: Rs. 564,86 million) on MAT credit entitl d

tha Hofs

for future years

Non-current inx nssets {net)
Advance income tax

Other non-current assets

(Unsecured and considered good)

Secunity deposils

Capital advances

Prepaid expenses

Balunce recoverable from government authorities

Current ﬁnnnall assets - Trade receivables
Trade i idered good - d
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Less: [oss allowance

Current financial assets - Cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks :

- in current account

= in deposit aceount (with original maturity of 3 months or less)
- in esCroW necount®

d tax linbility on temporary differences that will reverse in the future and estimated taxable income

Asat Asnt
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
1,633.58 1,527 81
1,633.58 1,527.81
Asat As nt
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
517.51 51738
2230 21.14
2.76 596
1.34 10.94
543.91 555,42
As al As at
3 December 2021 31 March 2021
192.63 204.35
47.59 49.10
(47.59) (49.10)
1949.63 204,35
Az st Asat
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
149.30 1,13232
2,002.00 550,00
B9.77 1,43287
2,241.07 3,155.19

* Represents the balance of Rs, 89.77 million as at 31 December 2021 (31 March 2021 : Rs. 1,432.87 million) from proceeds of initial public offer n[ ankj‘eld India REIT

Units (Total proceeds Rs. 38,000.00 mullion), These smounts are held in the escrow account and can be withdrawn for partial or full pr

existing indebtedness of SPVs, general purposes and issue expenses (as specified in the Brookfield India REITs final affer :lucnm:m]

or

pay of the




Brookfield India Real Estate Trust

o Consolidated Financinl S

(All amounis are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial

Other bank balances

Deposit aecaunt with original maturity of more than 3 months and upte 12 months®

As st Asat
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
317.99 150,65
317.99 150.65

* These fixed deposits includes Rs, 317,59 million as at 31 December 2021 (31 Murch 2021: Rs, 60.64 million) which are of restricted use being lien against debt service

reserve account, bank guarantees given to various authorities and given as security for sales tax registration.

Current financial assets - Loans

To parties other thun related poarties
(Unsecured and considered doubiful)
Advances 10 vendars

Less: loss allowance

Loans receivables considered good - secured

Loans receivabl idered good - }

Loans receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Loans receivables - credit impaired

Less: loss allowance

Current financial assets - Other

(Unsecured and considered good)

To parties other than related partics

Unbilled revenue*

Interest acerued but not due on fixed deposits with banks
Lease rent equalization®

Orher receivables

To related parties (refer note 40)

Other receivables

*Clussified as financial assets as right to consideration is unconditional and is due only after passage of time,

Other curreat nssets

(Unsecured and considered good)
Security deposits

Advances to vendors

Prepoid expenses

Balance ble from gi }
Other Advances

As ot As ut
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
036 036
(0.36) (0.38)
036 036
(0.36) (0:36)
Asm As at
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
147.44 79.63
% 1.94
38.50 1.64
8630 7793
1 1.99
286,54 163.13
As st Asnt

31 December 2021

31 March 2021

.01 0,0}
34.65 3136
73.65 3102
89.82 9393

012 -

198.25 157.32




Brookfield Indin Real Estnte Trust
Cond f

d Finnncinl §

(All amounts sre in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated fi

15 Unit Capital
Particulars No. of Units Amount
Asat 17 July 2020 - &
Units issued during the period
- pursuant o the witial public offer, 1ssued, subscribed and fully paid-up in cash (refer note i1 below) 138,181,800 3E,000.00
- in exchange for equity interest in SPVs (refer note iii below) 127,852,403 35,170.41
-in for 12% Compulsorily Convertible Det in Candor Kolkata 36,727,398 10,100.03
Less. Issue expenses (refer note below) - {1,495.66)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2021 302,801,601 81,774.78
As at D1 April 2021 302,801,601 81,774.78
Less Distnibution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2021 - (297.05)
Less: Distribution to Unithalders for the quarter encled 30 Sepember 2021 - (605.60)
Add: Reversal of issue sxpenses no longer payable (refer note below) - 5.16
Closing balance as at 31 December 2021 302,801,601 80,877.29

Note: Issue expenses pertaining 10 the Inital Public Offering (IMO) and listing of the Units on the National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchunge have been reduced
from the Unitholders capital as at 31 December 2021 and 31 March 2021 in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financinl Instruments: Presentation.

(a) Terms/ rights attached to Units and accounting thereof

(i) The Trust has anly one class of Units. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of Unit is entitled to one vole per unit. The Unitholders
have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Dislnhnlnbln Cash Flows of the Trust at least once in every six months in cach financial year in accordance with the REIT

Regulations. The Board of Di

of the L B divid

Unithalders, The Trust declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupuls

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Brookfield India REIT is requi
Brookfield India REIT for each financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital

i 1o

14

to Unith

d distributions. The distribution will be in preportion o the number of Units held by the

not [us than 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of

of the Brook

|d India REIT to pay to its

Unitholders cash distributions. Hence, the Unlt Capital is a compound financial instrument which contain bnth equity and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 -

5

Financial 1 P

fance with SEBI Circulars (No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/141/2016 duted

26 December 2016) issued under the REIT Regulations, the Unit Capital has been pl‘:semn:l as "Equity” in ordcrto comply \mth rh= r!qulumem ufSecunn H of Annexure A

1o the SEBI Circular dated 26 December 2016 dealing with the

and di

for

with Unit Capital

being classified as equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also prusenled in Statement of Changes in Unitholders' Equity when the distributions are approved by the Board of

Directors of Investment Manager.

{ii) Initial Public Offering of 138,181,800 Units for cash at price of Hs. 275 per Unit aggregating to Rs. 38,000.00 million.

(lii) Brookfield India REIT sequired the SPVs by acquiring all the equity interest held by our Sponsor and certain members of our Sponsor Group. The acquisition of equity
interest in the SPVs has been done by issue of 127,892,403 Units of Rs. 275 each as per the table below.

Name of SPV Number of Units allotted for acquiring all the equity interest held in the SPVs
Sponsor Sponsor Group (exduding Total
Sponsor)
Candor Kolkata 54,117,868 16,364 54,134,252
[ Festus - 31,474,412 31,474,412
SPPL Noida - 41,483,012 41,483,012
CIOP - 800,727 800,727
Total number of Units issued 54,117,588 73,774,515 127,892,403
b) Unitholders holding more than § percent Units in the Trust
| Name of Unitholders Nao., of Units % of holdings
BSREP Indin office Holdings ¥ Pte. Ltd. 54,117,888 17.87%
BSREP Indin Offics Holdings Pre Lid. 41499373 13.71%
BSREP Indin Office Holdings [II Pte, Lid. 36,727,358 12.13%
BSREP Il India Office Holdings Il Pte. Ltd. 28,086,775 9.28%

(¢) The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of registration till the balance sheet date,
Further, the Trust has not issued any units for consideration other than cash frem the date of registration till the balance sheet dote, except as disclosed above,

16 Other Equity*

Reserves and Surplus
Retained earmings

*Refer Conds 4 1 datd @

Relnined enrnings

As ot As at
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
(458.88) 252.75
(458.88) 25275

of Changes in Unitholders' Equity for detailed movement in other equity balances,

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained by the Brookfield India REIT is recognized and accumulated under the heading of retained earnings.
At the end of the year, the profit/{loss) afier tax is transferred from the Statement of Profit and Loss to the retained eamings account.
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Broakfield Indin Real Estnte Trust

Cond d O dnted 2
(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Condi i Consalidated i i

Noo-current financinl linbilities - Borrowings
Secured
Term loan from financial institutions

Total Borrowings

Non-current financial linbilitics - athers
Secunty deposit from lessee
Retention money

Provisions

Pravision for gratuity

Other nop-current linbilities

Deferred income
Contract liability*

As st As ol
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
22,327.00 21,005.17
22,327.00 21,015.17
As at As at
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
962.22 1,393.07
1.55 1820
963,77 1,412.27
As nt As nl
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
12.34 10,86
12.34 10.86
As al As al
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
244,58 3667
35593 6780
600,51 AR6.4T

*Candor Kolkam One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limated entered into a Joint Development Agreement with Gurgaon Infospace Limited (GIL) by which GIL will pay Rs. 1,000
million in various tranches commencing January 2021 to October 2023 for the development/construction of building used for commercial and retail purposes en certain land
parcels, the title of which is held by Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited, Under the said agreement, Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private
Limited is entitled to 72% of the gross sale receipts and deposits from the tenants arising out of the lease of the developed arcas and GIL is entitled to receive balance 28%. The
amount received including GST as at 31 D ker 202] of Rs. 420.00 millien (31 March 2021 of Ra. 80,00 million) is presented as contract liability (excluding GST).

Current financial liabilities - Trade payables

Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues 1o creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpnses®

*For balance payable to related parties, refer note 40

Az at
31 December 2021

As at
31 March 2021




Brookfield India Real Estate Trust

Cond i Consolid, i inl §
(All nmounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stuted)
Notes to the Cand 1 Consolidated it

22 Current - Other financinl liabilities

Security deposit from |essee
Retention money

Capital ereditors

Employee related payables
Other payables

23 Proyisions

Provision for gratuity
Provision far

24 Other current linbilities

Advance from customers
Statutory dues payable
Deferred income

Other payables

25 Caurrent tax linbilities (Net)

Provision for income tax

As ot As at
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
2,680.15 2.337.00
13449 13630
171.50 293.37
45.86 1151
3160 1,215.61
3,063.60 3.993.79
Asnt As at
31 Deceniber 2021 31 March 2021
0.10 0.08
4.4] 4.41
4.51 449
Asal As at
31 December 2021 31 Muarch 2021
76,41 4249
13135 177.66
149,16 168.29
B 7.57
356.92 396.01
As ot Asat
31 December 2021 31 March 2021
a7.46 12039
97.46 120.39
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Brookfield India Real Estate Trust

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements

Contingent liabilities

As at As at
Particulars 31 December 2021 31 March 2021
Claims apgainst the SPVs not acknowledged as debt in respect of Income-Tax matters (Refer note 1 below) 822.34 776,80
Claims against the SP'Vs not acknowledged as debt in respect of Indirect tax {VAT/Work contract/Entry tax} 267 2.67
(Refer note 2 below)
Grand Total B25.01 779.47
As at Asat
Note 1 31 December 2021 31 March 2021
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 807.04 762.54
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 15.30 14.26
Total 822.34 776,80

]
Contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021 includes penalty amounting to Rs. 485,38 million (31 March 2021 Rs. 445.38 million) in relation to disallowance of
settlement fees paid in earlier years for termination of contract, Other contingencies include Rs. 336.96 million (31 March 2021 : Rs, 291.42 million) relating to
other disallowances under the Income Tax Act, 1961,
The tax officer has set-off certain tax refund claimed in Income tax returns against these demands.

As at As at
Note2 31 December 2021 31 March 2021
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited * 2.67 2.67
Total 2.67 2.67
* The Company has given a bank guarantee of Rs. 1.00 million (31 March 2021: Rs. 1.00 million) to Member 5 y UP Pollution Control Board.
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Brooldield Indis Real Estate Trust

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements

Commitments
As at As at

Particulars 31 December 2021 31 March 2021
Capital commitments (net of advances) 457,63 327.47
The SPV wise details of capital commitments are as follows;
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited 133.97 59.19
Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited 146.55 268.28
Festus Properties Private Limited 177.11 -

457.63 327.47

Other commitments

Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited (formerly known as "Candor Gurgaon Two Developers & Projects Private Limited"; now amalgamated in
Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited w.e.£ 01 April 2017) has an ag t with Gurguon Infospace Limited (GIL). The title to the land is held by
Gurgaon Infospace Limited, a third party and is not affiliated to the Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited, Candor Kolkata One Hi=Tech Structures
Private Limited has developmenta) rights with respect to the property pursuant to a Joint Development Agreement (JDA) with GIL entered on 16 November 2006 as
amended from time to time. Under the said agreement Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited is entitled to 72% of the gross sale receipts and deposits
from the tenants arising out of the lease of the developed areas and GIL is entitled to receive balance 28%.

In supplement to carlier JDA, a new co-development agreement was entered into between GIL (the developer) and Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private
Limited (the co-developer) on 17 September 2007 as ded from time to tme under which the developer and co-developer will jointly carry out the process of
instaliation of fit-outs & fixtures and the cost of such installation shall be shared by the developer and co-developer in the same ratio as to sharing of gross proceeds i.e.
28% and 72% respectively. This apr 15 A d as joint operations as per Ind AS 111,




36

Brookfield India Real Estate Trust

Cond i Consolidated Fi ial St

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management
ts by gory and fair value

i) Fi inl instr

The below table summanzes the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair valuey of the § ial i that are
values are disclosed in the financial statements. There are no financial instruments, which are subsequently measured at fair value.

d at amortized cost and for which fair

Carrying value Fair value
Asat Asat Asat As at
31 December 2021 31 March 2021 31 December 2021 31 March 2021

At Amortized Cost

Financial assets

Trade receivables # 199.63 204.35 199.63 204.35
Cash and cash equivalents # 2241.07 3,155.19 2,241.07 3,155.19
Other bank balances # 317.99 150.65 317.99 150.65
Other financial assets # 376.50 444.95 376.50 444,96
Total financial assets 3,135.19 3,955.15 3,135.19 395515
At Amortized Cost

Financial liabilities

Borrowings # 22,327.00 21,015.17 22,327.00 21,015.17
Trade payables # 414.41 445.50 414.41 445.50
Other financial liabilities # 4,027.37 5,406.06 4,027.37 5,406.06
Total financial liabilities 26,768.78 26,866.73 216,768.78 26,866.73

# fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities which are recognized at amonized cost has been disclosed 1o be same as camying value as the carrying value approximately

equals to their fair value.
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Brookfield India Real Estate Trust

Condensed Consalidated Fi i1 g
{All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated fi inl

Related Party Disclosures
Related parties to Brookfield Indin REIT as at 31 December 2021

BSREF India Office Holdings V Pte Lid- Sponsor
Brookprop Menagement Services Private Linuted - Investment Manager
Axis Truatee Services Limited—Trustee

The Ultimate parent entity and sponsor groups, with whom the group has related party transactions during the period, consist of the below entities:
BSREP India Office Holdings V Pte Ltd- Sponsor

&) BSREP Il Indin Office Holdings 1l Pre, Ltd, (BSREP Il India) .

b} Brookfield Asset Manogement Ine. (BAM) , ultimate parent entity and controlling party

c) Kairos Property Managers Private Limited (Kairos)

d) BSREP Moon CI L.P

&) BSREP Moon C2 L.P

) BSREP India Office Holdings [1I Pre Lid. (BSREP India Office III)

) BSREP India Office Holdings Pie. Ltd. (BSREP India Holdings)

Brookfield India REIT'3 interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 1"~ Organization structure.

Directors & Key persoanel of the | Manager (Brookprop Manag Services Private Limited)

Directors Key personnel

Akila Krishnakumar (Independent Director) Alok Aggarwal - Managing director and chiel exccutive officer — India office business

Shailesh Vishnubhai Haribhakii (Independem Director) Sanjeev Kumar Shamma - Executive vice president and chief finenciel officer - India office business
Anuyj Ranjan (Non-Executive Director)

Ankur Gupta (Non-Executive Director)

Key management persoonel of SPV's
- Candor Kolknta One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited
Subrata Ghosh- Managing Director
Neera) Kapoor- Company Secretary (till 3 13t July 2021)
- Festus Properties Private Limited
Lalit Kumar- Company Sccretary
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Brookiield India Real Estate Trust
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Cond i C ial

41 Uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19:

The COVID-19 pand has d to cause disruption to b activities as well as disrupted travel and adversely impacted local, regional, pational and intemational
economic conditions. Brookfield Indin REIT has considered possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating 1o COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of investment property
(including under develog ). In developing assumptions relating to possible fulure uncertainties in the Indian economic cenditions because of this pandemic; Brookfield India
REIT, as al the date of approval of these Ct i Consolidated Financial Statements, has used internal and external sources of infi including ic forecast and other
information from market sources on the expected future performance of Brookficld India REIT. Based on this analysis, Brookfield India REIT has concluded that there is no
impairment to the carrying amount of investment property as on the reporting date.

The impact of COVID-19 on Brookfield India REIT Condensed Consolid
Consalidated Financial Statements,

r

ial St

may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these Condensed

42 Assets Acquisition

On 8 February 2021 (the acquisition date), Brookfield India REIT acquired 100% of the equity interest and compulsarily convertible debentures of four SPVs as described in more
detail in Note | - Organization structure; in for units of Brookfield India REIT amounting to Rs, 45,270.45 Million (the “Purchase consideration™),

The management applied the optional concentration test, under Ind AS 103, and concluded that the acquired set of activities and assets is not a business because substantially all of the
fair value of the gross assets 1is properties, with similar risk ct A linply, this has been d for as an asset
acquisition.

The manapement identified and recognised the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and allocated the purchase consideration to the individual identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of acquisition.

rated in i jstics

The allocated value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the four SPVs as at the date of acquisition were:

Assets Amount (in million)
Property, plant and 98.22
L property 100,378.03
|Investment property under development 723.34
Other assets 6,848.43
Totul Assets (A} 108,048.02
Linbilities

Borrowings (including current maturitics of long term borrawings) 56,776.42
Other liabilities 6,001.16
Totul Linbilities (B) 62,777.58
Net Assets (A — B) 45270.44)

43 Management fee
Property Management Fees
Pursuant to the Candor A ded and R 1 Service Ags dated 01 D ber 2020, I t Manager is entitled to a yearly fees @ 3% of the income from aperating lease

rentals as recorded in the books of accounts of SPPL Noida and Candor Kolkata, payable on a monthly basis, exclusive of applicable taxes. The fees has been determined for
providing real estate operating services to CIOP in relation to the Operational Services rendered by it with respect to SPPL Noida and Candor Kalketa. The said Management fees for
the quarter and nine months ended 31 December 2021 amounts to Rs. 29.03 million and Rs. 96.70 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for
computation of fees paid to Manager.

Pursuant to the Festus Service Apreement dated 01 December 2020, Investment Manaper is entitled to a yearly fee of 3% of the income from operating lease rentals as recorded in the
books of accounts of Festus, payable on a monthly basis, exclusive of applicable taxes. The fees has been determined for providing real estate operating services 1o Festus in relation
to the and of the K and any other properties developed by Festus from time to time (“Festus Properties”). The said Management fees for the quarter
and nine months ended 31 December 2021 amounts to Rs. 10.8] million and Rs. 3448 million respectively. There are no changes during the period in the methodology for
computation of fees paid to Manaper.

REIT Management Fees
Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 17 July 2020, Investment Manager is entitled to fees @ 1% of NDCF, exclusive of applicable taxes (also refer note 45). The
fees has been determined for undertaking management of the REIT and its i The said M; fees for the quarter and nine months ended 31 December 2021 amounts

to Rs. 16.96 million and Rs. 62.87 million respectively.
&7 @
o 5
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Brookficld India Real Estate Trust

Cond d C lidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements

Details of utilisation of proceeds of IPO are as follows:

Ohjects of the issue as per the prospectus Proposed utilisation Actual otilisation upto | Unutilised amount as
31 December 2021 at31 December 2021

Partial or full pre-payment or scheduled repayment of the 35,750.00 35,750.00 -

existing indebtedness of our Asset SPVs

General purposes (refer note below) 350.001 583.83 -

Issue expenses (refer note below) 1,900.00 1,572.53 93,64

Total 38,000.00 37,906.36 93.64

Note: Amount of Rs. 23383 million has been used for general carporate purposes from the proposed utilization towards issue expenses.
Distribution Policy

In terms of the Distribution policy and REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCFs of our Asset SPVs are required to be distributed to
Brookfield REIT, in proportion of its shareholding in our Asset SPVs, subject to applicable provisions of the Companies Act. The cash flows
receivable by Brookfield REIT may be in the form of dividends, interest income, principal loan repayment, proceeds of any capital reduction or
buyback from our Asset SPVs/ CIOP, sale proceeds out of disposal of investments of any or assets directly/ indirectly held by Brookfield REIT or as
specifically permitted under the Trust Deed or in such other form as may be permissible under the applicable laws.

At least 90% of the NDCFs of Brookfield REIT (“REIT Distributions™) shall be declared and made once every quarter of a Financial Year by our
Manager. The first distribution shall be made upon completion of the first full quarter after the listing of our Units on the Stock Exchanges. Further, in
accordance with the REIT Regulations, REIT Distributions shall be made no later than 15 days from the date of such declarations. The REIT
Distributions, when made, shall be made in Indian Rupees.

The NIICFs shall be caleulated in accordance with the REIT Regulations and any circular, notification or guidelines issued thereunder including the
SEBI Guidelines.

Subsequent events

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the unitholders at their meeting held on 14 January 2022, approved the acquisition of 100% of equity share
capital and compulsorily convertible debentures (CCDs) of Seaview Developers Private Limited by Brookfield India REIT from BSREP India Office
Holdings IV Pte. Ltd, and BSREP India Office Holdings Pte. Ltd. (collectively the “Sellers™) for an acquisition price, amounting to Rs, 39,663.02
million (subject to adjustments in relation to net debt, working capital and other adj ts as agreed g the parties amounting to Rs. 21,959.02
million). The acquisition price was based on the average of the valuations from two independent valuers, as per the REIT regulations and in
accordance with the option agreement entered into between Seaview Developers Private Limited and its shareholders with Brookfield India REIT and
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited as manager of Brookfield India REIT. The acquisition price post adjustments was paid through a
combination of cash (Rs. 13,153.83 million) and units of the Brookfield India REIT (Rs. 4,550,17 million). The transaction was completed by
payment of purchase consideration in cash to Sellers and issue of units to BSREP India Office Holdings IV Pte. Ltd. and transferring of equity share
capital and CCDs from Sellers to Brookfield India REIT on 24 January 2022,
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Brookfield Indin Real Estate Trust

Cond d C lidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are in Rupees millions unless otherwise stated)
Notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements

Shantiniketan Properties Private Limited (SPPL Noida) and Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Private Limited (“Candor Kolkata”), which
became subsidiary of Brookfield India REIT after it was acquired by it in February 2021, had received certain amounts as share application money
(“Share Application Money") prior to 31 March 2014, against which SPPL Noida had not allotted shares or refunded such Share Application Money
and Candor Kolkata had not allotted shares. The segregation and maintenance of such Share Application Money in a separate bank account, and the
utilization of such Share Application Money for general corporate purposes, was not in accordance with Paragraph 8(4) of the Unlisted Public
Companies (Preferential Allotment) Amendment Rules, 2011 (the Rules). During the period ended 31 March 2021, both the subsidiaries had filed
application w's 441 of the Companies Act, 2013 for compounding of offence.

Pursuant to the hearing held on 30 December, 2021, Hon’ble Regional Director accepted the compounding application(s) filed by SPPL Noida and
Candor Kolkata and compounded the offence for bath the companies by levying a compounding fees, amounting to Rs. 1.05 million for SPPL Noida
and Rs. 0.40 million for Candor Kolkata, and passed the order dated 25 January 2022 and 24 January 2022 for Candor Kolkata and SPPL Noida,
respectively. The said compounding fees has been paid by the respective subsidiaries within the requisite timelines and accrued for in profit and loss
for the period ended 31 December 2021.

"0.00" Represents value less than Rs. 0.01 million,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brookprop Management Services Private Limited
(as Manager to the Brookfield India REIT)
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